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PART 1- NOTIFICATION

ITEM SIGNIFICANT PARTIES

List the full names and business and residential addresses as applicable for the following

persons

the issuers directors

The issuer does not have Board of Directors Pursuant to the terms of its Operating

Agreement the issuer is managed by its Managing Members The persons listed below

currently serve as the issuers Managing Members

Full Name Business Address Residential Address

Larry Jackson 1155 Chess Drive 102 5518 Sail Court

Foster City CA 94404 Orlando FL 32829

Scott Woodworth 155 Chess Drive 102 21911 Hyde Road

Foster City CA 94404 Sonorna CA 95476

David Suzuki 1155 Chess Drive 102 25 Mountain View Place

Foster City CA 94404 San Mateo CA 94402

the issuers officers

Full Name Business Address Residential Address

Lany Jackson 155 Chess Drive 102 5518 Sail Court

Chief Executive Foster City CA 94404 Orlando FL 32829

Officer

Scott Woodworth 155 Chess Drive 102 21911 Hyde Road

President Foster City CA 94404 Sonorna CA 95476

Marcie Low 155 Chess Drive 102 2501 Isabelle Ave

Chief Operating Foster City CA 94404 San Mateo CA 94403

Officer

Satoshi Kaneko 155 Chess Drive 102 411 Beach Park Blvd

Chief Information Foster City CA 94404 Foster City CA 94404

Officer

Alan Wallace 2569 Mayfair Lane 2569 Mayfair Lane

Executive Vice Weston FL 33327 Weston FL 33327

President

Michelle Bejarano 1155 Chess Drive 102 3333 Woodland Drive

Acting Chief Foster City CA 94404 Phoenix AZ 85048

Financial Officer

and Controller
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the issuers general partners

Not Applicable

Name Class Percentage Business Address Residential Address

Woodworth Living Trust1 32.61% 21911 Hyde Road 21911 Hyde Road

Sonoma CA 95476 Sonoma CA 95476

Larry Jackson 24.46% 1155 Chess Drive 102 5518 Sail Court

Foster City CA 94404 Orlando FL 32829

David Suzuki 20.38% 1155 Chess Drive 102 25 Mountain View Place

Foster City CA 94404 San Mateo CA 94402

Loudmouth Investment 22.55% 1155 Chess Drive 102

Group LLC Foster City CA 94404

beneficial owners of percent or more of any class of the issuers equity securities

Name Class Percentage Business Address Residential Address

Woodworth Living Trust 32.61% 21911 Hyde Road 21911 Hyde Road

Sonoma CA 95476 Sonoma CA 95476

Larry Jackson 24.46% 1155 Chess Drive 102 5518 Sail Court

Foster City CA 94404 Orlando FL 32829

David Suzuki 20.38% 1155 Chess Drive 102 25 Mountain View Place

Foster City CA 94404 San Mateo CA 94402

David Halldorson 5.82% 1155 Chess Drive 102 1485 Masonic Ave
Foster City CA 94404 Apt

San Francisco CA 94117

Sandy Teall 5.24% 1155 Chess Drive 102 2417 Haas St

Foster City CA 94404 Escondido CA 92025

promoters of the issuer

Scott Woodworth Founder

affiliates of the issuer

None

counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering

Scott Woodworth and his wife are co-trustees of this trust for the benefit of their children and have

voting control over these shares

record owners of percent or more of any class of the issuers equity securities
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Clark Hill Thorp Reed 301 Grant Street 14UI Floor Pittsburgh PA 15219

each underwriter with respect to the proposed offering

Lake Forest Securities LLC

39 LaSalle Suite 716

Chicago Illinois 60603

312-595-1970

jk the underwriters directors and officers

Name Business Address Residential Address

James Buhier 39 LaSalle Suite 716 1401 Gregory Avenue

Chicago Illinois 60603 Wilmette Illinois 60091

David Buhler 39 LaSalle Suite 716 1000 Kentucky Street

Chicago Illinois 60603 Racine Wisconsin 53405

Rudy Scuglik 39 LaSalle Suite 716 712 55th Street

Chicago Illinois 60603 Kinosha Wisconsin 53140

the underwriters general partners and

None

counsel to the underwriter

Not Applicable

ITEM Application of Rule 262

State whether any of the persons identified in response to Item are subject to any of the

disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262

We are not aware of any party identified in response to Item that is subject to any of the

disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262

If any such person is subject to these provisions provide full description including pertinent names

dates and other details as well as whether or not an application has been made pursuant to Rule 262 for

waiver of such disqualification and whether or not such application has been granted or denied

Not Applicable

ITEM Affiliate Sales

If any part of the proposed offering involves the resale of securities by affiliates of the issuer confirm

that the following description does not apply to the issuer

Not Applicable

The issuer has not had net income from operations of the character in which the issuer intends to

engage for at least one of its last two fiscal years

ITEM Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered
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List the jurisdiction in which t1e securities are to be offered by underwriters dealers or salespersons

Michigan Minnesota Illinois and Indiana

List the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered other than by underwriters dealers or

salesmen and state the method by which such securities are to be offered

Not Applicable

ITEM Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers

within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A state

None

the name of such issuer

the title and amount of securities issued

the aggregate offering price or other consideration for which they were issued and basis for computing

the amount thereof

the names and identities of the persons to whom the securities were issued

As to any unregistered securities of the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers which

were sold within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A by or for the account of any person who at

the time was director officer promoter or principal security holder of the issuer of such securities or

was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer furnish the information specified in subsections

through of paragraph

None

Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation relied upon for exemption

from the registration requirements of such Act and state briefly the facts relied upon for such exemption

The Notes are being offered and will be sold pursuant to the exemption from registration

provided by Section 3b of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation promulgated thereunder

ITEM Other Present or Proposed Offerings

State whether or not the issuer or any of its affiliates is currently offering or contemplating the offering of

any securities in addition to those covered by this Form 1-A so describe fully the
present or proposed

offering

The issuer is not currently offering or contemplating the offering of any additional securities

ITEM Marketing Arrangements

Briefly describe any arrangement known to the issuer or to any person named in response to Item

above or to any selling security holder in the offering covered by this Form 1-A for any of the following

purposes

To limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as those to be offered for the period of

distribution

To stabilize the market for any of the securities to be offered

For withholding commissions or otherwise to hold each underwriter or dealer responsible for the
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distribution of its participation

No such marketing arrangements are known to the issuer at the time of this filing

Identify any underwriter that intends to confinn sales to any accounts over which it exercises

discretionary authority and include an estimate of the amount of securities so intended to be confirmed

Not Applicable

ITEM Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

If any expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified
any part thereof was

employed for such purpose on contingent basis or at the time of such preparation or certification or at

any time thereafter had material interest in the issuer or any of its parents or subsidiaries or was
connected with the issuer or any of its subsidiaries as promoter underwriter voting trustee director
officer or employee furnish brief statement of the nature of such contingent basis interest or connection

No such expert has been named in the offering
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ITEM Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

Indicate whether or not publication authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to the filing of this

notification If so indicate the dates of publication and of the last communication with prospective

purchasers

No solicitation of interest documents have been published by the issuer as of the date of the filing
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Preliminary Offering Circular

Subject to Completion Dated October 24 2013

Loudmouth Golf LLC
1155 Chess Drive 102

Foster City CA 94404

800-390-5116

$5000000

7% Fixed Rate Secured Notes Maturing on January 2019

We are offering minimumof Four Million Dollars $4000000 and maximum of Five

Million Dollars $5000000 in aggregate principal amount of debt securities in the fonn of

secured promissory notes the Notes that are nonconvertible The Notes are being

offered at face value with fixed rate of 7% simple interest per annum with maturity date

of January 2019 Interest accruing on the Notes is payable semi-annually on January

and July The Notes are callable by the Company after years from the date of issuance

at 102% of their face value and after years at 101% of face value The Notes will have

preference upon liquidation in light of their status as secured debt of the Company The

Notes will be issued under Trust Indenture dated as of
___________ 2013 the Trust

Indenture between U.S National Bank National Association as Trustee the Trustee
and the Company The Notes will be secured by first priority lien on all of the

Companys assets including its inventory accounts receivable patents and copyrights

licensing agreements and bank accounts debt service reserve fund equal to one year of

interest will be established by the Company upon issuance of the Notes and maintained

until maturity

The Notes will be offered to prospective investors on best efforts basis by Lake Forest

Securities LLC our dealer manager and member firm of the Financial Industry

Regulatory Authority or FINRA The offering period began when the Securities and

Exchange Commission qualified the offering on _______________ 2013 and will terminate

on the earlier to occur of the date that is not more than one hundred twenty 120 days

thereafter and ii the date which is sixty 60 days after the date on which at least

$4000000 of Notes qualified hereunder have been sold The Notes are being offered on an

ongoing and continuous basis Our dealer manager may engage other FINRA member

firms as participating broker-dealers who will receive commissions on the sale of the Notes

Our dealer manager will receive selling commissions of 6% of the offering proceeds

The minimum Note sold under this offering will be $5000 and the maximum Note sold

under this offering will be $5000000

No dealer broker salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or

to make any representations other than those contained in this Offering Circular and if

given or made such other information should not be relied upon as having been authorized

by our Company or our dealer manager This Offering Circular constitutes an offer to sell

or solicitation of an offer to buy the Notes solely in the states of Michigan Minnesota

Illinois and Indiana

If you are resident of state other than the foregoing and have received this Offering

Circular please return the Offering Circular to our Company or our dealer manager keeping

no copies thereof Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any sale made

hereunder nor the filing or other use of this Offering Circular shall create an implication
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that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company since the date hereof or imply that any
information herein is accurate or complete as of any later date

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESSES INVOLVES HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND
INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN
AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD
CAREFULLY REVIEW THE SECTION ENTITLED RISK FACTORS ON PAGE BEFORE
INVESTING

iN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING INCLUDING THE
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED
OR APPROVED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR
REGULATORY AUTHORITY FURTHERMORE THESE AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT
PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS CRIMINAL OFFENSE

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS
UPON THE MERITS OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE
THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION HOWEVER THE COMMISSION HAS NOT
MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION

Distribution Spread

Price to Public Underwriting discount Proceeds to issuer or

and commissions other persons
Per Note $5000 $300 $4700
Total Minimum $4000000 $240000 $3760000
Total Maximum $5000000 $300000 $4700000

This Offering Circular contains forward-looking statements All statements contained in this Offering
Circular other than statements of historical fact including statements regarding our future results of
operations and financial position our business

strategy and plans and our objectives for future

operations are forward-looking statements The words believe may will estimate
continue anticipate intend expect and similar expressions are intended to ident5 forward-

looking statements

We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections
about future events and trends that we believe may affect our financial condition results of operations
business strategy short-term and long-terni business operations and objectives and financial needs
These forward-looking statements are subject to number of risks uncertainties and assumptions

including those described in the Risk Factors section herein Moreover we operate in very
competitive and rapidly changing environneent New risks emerge from time to time It is not possible for
our management to predict all risks nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the

extent to which any factor or combination offactors may cause actual results to differ materially from
those contained in any forward looking statements we may make In light of these risks uncertainties and

assumptions the future events and trends discussed in this Offering Circular may not occur and actual
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results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking

statements

of Page Intentionally Left Blank
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You should not i-ely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events The events and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements may not be achieved or occur Although we
believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable we cannot

guarantee future results levels of activity performance or achievements We are under no duty to

update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this Offering Circular or to conform
these statements to actual results or revised expectations
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THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ALL OF THE REPRESENTATIONS BY THE
COMPANY CONCERNING THIS OFFERING AND NO PERSON SHALL MAKE DIFFERENT
OR BROADER STATEMENTS THAN THOSE CONTAINED HEREIN INVESTORS ARE
CAUTIONED NOT TO RELY UPON ANY INFORMATION NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN
THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR

We have only qualified this Offering for offers to individual investors in the following jurisdictions

Michigan Minnesota Illinois and Indiana Therefore individual investors located outside of these

jurisdictions should not expect to be eligible to participate in this Offering

This Offeriig Circular together with Financial Statements Exhibits and other attachments consists of
total of 42 pages

of page intentionally left blank
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY

This summaly highlights iiforniation contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular It does not contain

all of the iiformation you should consider before purchasing Notes Therefore you should read the

Offering Circular in its entirety including the risk factors and the financial statements and related

footnotes appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular References to we us or our and the

Company generally refer to Loudmouth GofLLC Delaware limited liability company

Loudmouth was founded by Scott Woodworth in 2000 The Company began with focus on designing

marketing and distributing LOUD mens golf apparel with an emphasis on web-based sales and

marketing The Company has since expanded its product lines to include womens golf and recreation

apparel and beach and ski apparel The Company wholesales its products to growing number of apparel
retailers which include Golf Town Nordstroms Dicks Sporting Goods Zappos and PGA Tour

Superstore

The Company copyrights most if its designs and trademarks all of its logos to protect its intellectual

property

As limited liability company we operate pursuant to an Operating Agreement and our owners hold

equity interests in the Company Pursuant to our articles of organization and operating agreement we are

managed by our member managers Scott Woodworth who is also President Lany Jackson who is also

Chief Executive Officer and David Suzuki For information regarding their respective backgrounds and

experience and that of other key personnel of the Company please refer to the section of this Offering
Circular entitled Directors Executive Officers and Significant Employees of the Company

Our principal offices are located at 1155 Chess Drive 102 Foster City CA 94404 and our telephone
number is 800 390-5116 For additional information regarding the Company or this Offering you may
write or call us at the foregoing address and telephone number

of page intentionally left blank
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The Offering

The following summary contains basic information about the Notes being offered and is not intended to

be complete It does not contain all the information that is important to you For more complete

understanding of the Notes please refer to the Section of this Offering Circular entitled Description of

Securities Being Offered on Page 23

Issuer Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware limited liability company

Offering Period The Offering Period began when the Securities and Exchange
Commission qualified the Offering on ______________ 2013 and

will terminate on the earlier to occur of the date that is not more

than one hundred twenty 120 days thereafter and ii the date

which is sixty 60 days after the date on which at least $4000000
of Notes qualified hereunder have been sold The Notes are being

offered on an ongoing and continuous basis

Securities Offered minimum of $4000000 and maximum of $5000000 in

aggregate principal amount of secured fixed-rate Notes

Interest Rate Seven percent 7% per annum

Maturity Date January 2019

Interest Payment Dates Semi-annually on January and July

Security The Notes will be subject to Trust Indenture and secured by first

priority lien on the Issuers inventory accounts receivable patents

and copyrights licensing agreements and bank accounts debt

service reserve fund equal to one year of interest will be established

by the Company upon issuance of the Notes and maintained until

maturity The Notes will rank senior to all of our future

indebtedness if any The Indenture Trustee is U.S Bank National

Association

Call Features The Notes are callable at the option of the Company after three

years from closing of this Offering at 102% of face value and after

four years from closing at 10 1%

Use of Proceeds See the Section entitled Use of Proceeds on Page for

description

Risk Factors See the Section entitle Risk Factors for discussion of certain

factors that you should carefully consider before
investing in the

Notes
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all other information set forth in

this Offering Circular including the risks and uncertainties described below before making an
investment in our Notes

An investment in our Notes is speculative investment and therefore no assurance can be given that

you will realize your investment objectives

No assurance can be given that investors will realize return on their investment in the Notes or that

they will not lose their entire investment in our Notes For this reason each prospective subscriber

for our Notes should carefully read this Offering Circular and all Exhibits to this Offering Circular

There is no sinkingfund to fund payments ofprincipal or interest and we may not be able to generate
sufficient cash to service our obligations under the Notes We are not required to periodically set aside

funds which are dedicated to meeting future payments of principal or interest when due on the Notes
and may rely solely on future operating income as available to fund such payments Our ability to

service our obligations under the Notes including the repayment of the
principal and ongoing interest

payments will depend among other things on our future financial and operating performance which
will be affected by prevailing economic conditions and

discretionary consumer spending much of
which is beyond our control In the event that the Company is unable to repay the principal when due
on the Notes from operating income the Company may not be able to obtain suitable additional

funding from the credit markets to repay such principal

We may not be successful in executing our growth strategy

The sports apparel market is highly susceptible to changing fashion trends and varying consumer
preferences that we may not successfully predict or respond to in timely fashion Our future success

depends in large part upon our continued ability to develop and introduce new and innovative

apparel designs This is particularly true with
respect to unique golf apparel which is especially

subject to changing consumer preferences and unpredictable fashion trends Our success depends on
our ability to identify and anticipate the changing style preferences of our customers and our ability to

quickly produce and stock wide selection of merchandise that appeals to these style preferences If

we are unable to predict or respond in timely manner to such changing trends and preferences our
sales volume could be quickly and significantly diminished

Competition from new and existing competitors could have an adverse effect on our sales and

profitability

The highly competitive nature of the apparel industry and related ease of entry may result in increased

competition We compete with such companies as Nike Adidas Puma Travis Mathew 1W and

Royal Awesome Some of these competitors have
greater fmancial or marketing resources than we

do and are able to devote greater resources to sourcing promoting and selling their products We may
also face increased competition due to the entry of new competitors including current suppliers that

decide to sell their products directly As result of this competition we may experience lower sales

or greater operating costs such as marketing costs which would have an adverse effect on our

margins and our results of operations in general

The Company business is susceptible to increases in costs related to raw material foreign labor
fuel and shipping

These costs are especially unpredictable for the Company because our key suppliers are in distant

foreign locations Also our business could be adversely affected should new legislation be enacted

restricting the importation or increasing the costs of apparel produced abroad
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While many of the Companys product designs are subject to certain trademark and copyright

protections we remain subject to possible challenges to our intellectual property rights In addition

pursuing legal action against infringers may be cost prohibitive and hamper our ability to protect a/

of our intellectual properly

Our success and ability to compete are dependent on sales of our proprietary-branded merchandise

We currently hold number of registrations for copyrights trademarks and service marks to protect

our proprietary brand and designs We believe that the exclusive right to use copyrighted designs

trademarks and service marks has helped establish our market share If we are unable to continue to

protect the copyrights trademarks and service marks for our proprietary brand and designs if such

marks become generic or if third parties adopt marks similar to our marks our ability to differentiate

our products and services may be diminished In the event that our trademarks or service marks are

successfully challenged by third parties we could lose brand recognition and be forced to devote

additional resources to advertising and marketing

From time to time we may be compelled to protect our intellectual property which may involve

litigation Such litigation may be time-consuming and expensive and distract our management from

running the day-to-day operations of our business and could result in the impairment or loss of the

related intellectual property There is no guarantee that the steps we take to protect our intellectual

property including litigation when necessary will be successful The loss or reduction of any of our

significant intellectual property rights could diminish our ability to distinguish our products from

competitors products and retain our market share for our proprietary products

We may become
subject to intellectual properly suits that could cause us to incur substantial costs or

pay substantial damages or prohibit usfroni selling our products

Third parties may from time to time assert claims against us alleging infringement misappropriation

or other violations of patent trademark or other proprietary rights whether or not such claims have

merit Such claims can be time consuming and expensive to defend and may divert the attention of

our management and key personnel from our business operations Claims for alleged infringement
and any resulting lawsuit if successful could subject us to significant liability for damages increase

the costs of selling some of our products and damage our reputation Any potential intellectual

property litigation could also force us to stop selling certain products obtain license from the owner
to use the relevant intellectual property which license may not be available on reasonable terms if at

all or redesign our products to avoid using the relevant intellectual property We are heavily

dependent on our website for signfIcant portion of our sales and thus our business could be

materially harmed by viruses or other disruptions to our internet-based sales and by the imposition of

internet sales taxes

key element of our strategy
is to generate high-volume traffic on and increase sales through our

Internet site which currently accounts for about 55% of our total sales volume Accordingly the

satisfactory performance reliability and availability of our Internet site transaction processing

systems and network infrastructure are critical to our reputation and our ability to attract and retain

customers Our Internet revenues will depend on the number of visitors who shop on our Internet site

and the volume of orders we can fill on timely basis Problems with our Internet site or order

fulfillment performance would reduce the volume of goods sold and could damage our reputation We

may experience system interruptions from time to time If there is substantial increase in the volume

of traffic on our Internet site or the number of orders placed by customers we may be required to

expand and further upgrade our technology transaction-processing systems and network
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infrastructure We cannot assure you that we will be able to accurately project the rate or timing of

increases if any in the use of our Internet site or that we will be able to successfully and seamlessly

expand and upgrade our systems and infrastructure to accommodate such increases on timely and

cost-effective basis

The success of our Internet site depends on the secure transmission of confidential infonnation over

networks and the Internet and on the secure storage of data We rely on encryption and authentication

technology licensed from third parties to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect

secure transmission and storage of confidential infonnation such as customer credit card information

In addition we maintain an extensive confidential database of customer profiles and transaction

information We cannot assure you that advances in computer capabilities new discoveries in the

field of cryptography or other events or developments will not result in compromise or breach of

the security we use to protect customer transaction and personal data contained in our customer

database In addition other companies in the retail sector have from time to time experienced

breaches as result of actions by their employees If any compromise of our security were to occur it

could have material adverse effect on our reputation business operating results and fmancial

condition and could result in loss of customers party who is able to circumvent our security

measures could damage our reputation cause interruptions in our operations and/or misappropriate

proprietary information which in turn could cause us to incur liability for any resulting losses or

damages We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against

security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by breaches

If we are unable to predict or respond in timelymanner to such changing trends and preferences our

sales volume could be quickly and significantly diminished

We are dependent on certain key personnel

Our future success depends in significant part on the continued services of Larry Jackson Scott

Woodworth and our few other key employees Any loss or interruption of our key personnels
services could have materially adverse effect on our ability to remain profitable and implement our

business plans and we cannot be assured of replacing such personnel with equally qualified persons
in timely manner Company does not have employment agreements with its key personnel and has

recently applied for but does not currently maintain key-man life insurance policies on Mr Jackson or

Mr Woodworth

The primary supplier and manufacturing facility for the Companys products is located in China and
is therefore subject to unpredictable disruptions due to political and labor issues or acts of God or

other random events

Approximately 80% of our revenue is derived from sales of products that are manufactured by our

supplier in China We do not have any long-term supply contracts with that or other suppliers

providing for continued supply pricing allowances or other terms If our Chinese supplier limits the

amount or variety of products they make available to us or fails to deliver such products on timely

basis and upon customary pricing and payment tenns our sales and profitability will be reduced If

any such disruptions were to occur the Company would not be able to promptly secure another

supplier and could be subject to the loss of substantial amount of prepaid raw materials which

would substantially delay shipment of fmished products to customers and would have material

adverse effect on our results of operations
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Disruption of operations ofports through which our products are iinportedfroin China or shipping

casualty could have material adverse effect on our sales and proJlta bilily

We import substantially all of our proprietary products from China under short-term purchase orders

pursuant to supply agreement that is terminable by the supplier upon 90 days advance notice If

disruption occurs in the operations of ports from which our products are exported or through whicl1

our products are imported we may have to ship some or all of our products from China by air freight

Shipping by air is significantly more expensive than shipping by boat and if we cannot pass these

increased shipping costs on to our customers our profitability will be reduced
disruption at ports

through which our products are imported or shipping casualty would have material adverse effect

on our results of operations and financial condition

reduction in the number ofrounds of gofplayed and the popularity ofgof may adversely affect our
sales

We generate most of our revenues from the sale of golf apparel and accessories The demand for golf
products is directly related to the popularity of golf the number of golf participants and the number of
rounds of golf being played by these

participants According to the National Golf Foundation the

number of rounds played annually in the United States has steadily declined over the past 10 years
We believe that this decline is attributable to number of factors including the state of the nations

economy If golf participation and the number of rounds of golf played decreases sales of our

products may be adversely affected We cannot assure you that the overall dollar volume of the

market for golf apparel will grow or that it will not decline in the future

The demand for golf products is also directly related to the popularity of magazines cable channels
and other media dedicated to golf television coverage of golf tournaments and attendance at golf
events We depend on the exposure of the products we sell through advertising and the media or at

golf tournaments and events Any significant reduction in television coverage of or attendance at
golf tournaments and events or any significant reduction in the popularity of golf magazines or golf
channels may reduce the visibility of the products that we sell and could adversely affect our sales

Our operating costs and profitability could be adversely affected we are unable to accurately

predict and respond to seasonalfiuctuations in our business

Our business is seasonal The golf season and the number of rounds played in the markets we serve

fluctuate based on number of factors including the weather Accordingly our sales
leading up to

and during the warm-weather golf season as well as the December holiday gift-giving season have

historically contributed to higher percentage of our annual net revenues and annual net operating
income than other periods in our fiscal year We make decisions regarding the purchase of

merchandise well in advance of the season in which it will be sold We incur significant additional

expenditures leading up to and during these periods in anticipation of higher sales including

acquiring additional inventory and advertising In the event of unseasonable weather during the peak
season in certain markets our sales may be lower and we may not be able to adjust our inventory or

expenses in timely fashion This seasonality may result in volatility or have an adverse effect on our
results of operations or our financial condition

reduction in discretionary consumer spending could reduce sales of gofproducts
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Golf-related products are recreational in nature and are therefore discretionary purchases for

consumers Consumers are generally more willing to make discretionary golf product purchases

during favorable economic conditions Discretionary spending is affected by many factors including

general business conditions interest rates the availability of consumer credit taxation and consumer

confidence in future economic conditions Purchases of our products could decline during periods

when disposable income is lower or during periods of actual or perceived unfavorable economic

conditions Any significant decline in general economic conditions or uncertainties regarding future

economic prospects that adversely affect
discretionary consumer spending whether in the United

States generally or in one of our foreign markets could lead to reduced sales of our products

The Company regularly extends credit to its retail customers many of which are small businesses

These businesses may be particularly susceptible to downturns in the economy which could have

material effect on their ability to satisfy their credit obligations to the Company

The Sale of the Notes is Restricted

Because there will be no established trading market for the Notes it may be difficult or virtually

impossible to sell your Notes

disruption in the service or signjIcant increase in the cost of our priniary delivery service for our

direct-to-consumer operations would have material adverse effect on our sales and
profitability

We use FedEx for substantially all of our ground shipments of products sold through our Internet

site in the United States Any significant disruption to FedExs services would impede our

ability to deliver our products through our direct-to-consumer channel which could cause us to

lose sales or customers In addition if FedEx were to significantly increase its shipping charges
we may not be able to pass these additional shipping costs on to our customers and still maintain

the same level of direct-to-consumer sales In the event of disruption to FedExs services or

significant increase in its shipping charges we may not be able to engage alternative carriers to

deliver our products in timely manner on favorable terms which could have material adverse

effect on our sales profitability and financial condition Note In addition to the above risks

businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully appreciated by management In reviewing
this Offering Circular potential investors should keep in mind other possible risks that could be

important
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We are offering $5000000 in aggregate principal amount of Notes The minimum purchase in

this Offering is $5000 Accepted subscriptions for the minimum offering amount of $4000000 must
be received accepted by us and deposited with U.S Bank National Association the Trustee in

non-interest bearing account before the proceeds of this offering will be released to us If we have
not received and accepted subscriptions for the minimum Offering amount by the date which is one
hundred twenty 120 days after the date of this Offering Circular then this Offering will terminate
and the indenture trustee will promptly refund all purchase prices paid for Notes

The offers and sales of our Notes will be made on best efforts basis by broker-dealers who are

members of FINRA Lake Forest Securities LLC our dealer-manager will receive selling commissions

equal to 6% of the gross proceeds of the Offering and may compensate other
participating broker-dealers

out of this payment See USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company and our dealer-manager have entered into managing broker dealer agreement
attached to this Offering Circular as Exhibit for the sale of our Notes Broker-Dealers desiring to
become members of the selling group will be required to execute participating dealer agreement with
our dealer manager either before or after the date of this Offering Circular

Offering Materials

This Offering of our Notes is made exclusively by this Offering Circular the Offering Statement
of which it is part and the appendices exhibits and supplements thereto In addition to this Offering
Circular we may utilize certain sales material in connection with the Offering of our Notes although only
when accompanied by or preceded by the delivery of this Offering Circular In certain jurisdictions

some or all of our sales material may not be permitted and if so will not be used in those jurisdictions

The offering of Notes is made only by means of this Offering Circular Although the information
contained in our supplemental sales material will not conflict with any of the information contained in this

Offering Circular the supplemental materials do not purport to be complete and should not be considered

part of this Offering Circular or the Offering Statement of which this Offering Circular is part

Subscription Procedures for the Notes

Prospective investors who meet the suitability standards may subscribe for Notes as follows

Review this entire Offering Circular and any exhibits and supplements accompanying this Offering
Circular

Complete the execution copy of the Subscription Agreement specimen copy of the Subscription

Agreement is included in this Offering Circular as Exhibit No

Deliver your completed and executed Subscription Agreement to our dealer manager at the address

set forth in the Subscription Agreement

If you are paying the purchase price for your Notes via check deliver your check for the full purchase
price to our dealer manager and if you are paying via wire transfer transmit your full purchase price
to U.S Bank National Association the indenture trustee pursuant to the wiring instructions in your
Subscription Agreement
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Your check should be made payable to U.S Bank National Association as the Trustee under Trust

Indenture for Loudmouth Golf LLC You may also deliver the purchase price of the Notes
directly

to the Trustee pursuant to wiring instructions included in the Subscription Agreement

Subscriptions will be effective only upon our acceptance and we reserve the right to reject any

subscription in whole or in part An approved custodian or trustee must process and forward to us

subscriptions made through IRAs Keogh plans 401k plans and other tax-deferred plans If we do not

accept your subscription we will promptly return your check without interest or promptly refund any
purchase price transferred via wire transfer Any subscription application not accepted within thirty 30
days of receipt shall be deemed rejected

USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth the use of the proceeds from this Offering

If Minimum If Maximum
Sold Amount Sold Amount

Total Proceeds $4000000 $5000000

Less

Offering Expenses 150000 150000

Selling Commissions and Fees2 240000 300000
Net Proceeds

3610000 4550000

Use of Net Proceeds

Pay Off Existing Bank Credit Line3 750000 750000

One-Year Interest Reserve Fund 280000 350000

Increased Inventoy Purchases7 1920000 2400000

Increased Payroll8 368000 630000

Marketing/Advertising 100000 100000

Operations 100000 100000

Working Capital 92000 220000

Total Use of Net Proceeds $3610000 $4550000

The Company does not anticipate having any cash flow or liquidity problems within the next 12 months
and is not in default or in breach of any note loan lease or other indebtedness or financing arrangement
requiring payments by the Company The Company is not subject to any litigation or unsatisfied

judgments liens or settlement obligations

Offering Expenses include legal accounting printing advertising and other
expenses of this Offering

Our dealer manager will receive selling commissions of 6% of the offering proceeds which it will re-allow and
to participating broker-dealers

These funds will be used to pay off the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Companys $750000
Line of Credit Loan with Old Florida National Bank Orlando Florida used to fund inventory purchases This Line
of Credit has term of one year matures on June 2014 and bears interest at variable rate equal to the Prime
Rate as quoted in the Wall Street Journal plus 1% but in no event less that 5.5% It is guaranteed jointly and

severally by Scott Woodworth Larry Jackson and David Suzuki

During the last two years the Company has not had sufficient cash to order enough inventory to meet consumer
demand The largest single use of cash will be to buy product to capitalize on demand that has historically exceeded

supply The Company believes that it has lost significant amounts of gross profit as result of low
inventory levels

The Company plans to hire key employees in the area of Sales Information Technology and Manufacturing
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The Company expects that the proceeds from this Offering will satisfy its cash requirements for the next

12 months without the need to raise any additional funds

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General

The Company was founded by Scott Woodworth in 2000 After shopping for wild golf pants and finding

nothing but boring khakis he made his own boldly-patterned pants and his simple trip to the local fabric

store has turned into globally visible brand From 2000 to 2006 Mr Woodworth operated the

Company from his home as sole proprietorship with little capital investment relying largely on word-

of-mouth to generate periodic sales of golf pants that gradually grew from sales revenue of $3160 in

2001 to $64500 in 2006 On January 23 2007 the Company was formed as Delaware limited liability

company pursuant to Certificate of Formation filed on that date with the Delaware Secretary of State
In 2007 Larry Jackson became co-owner and investor in the Company and in 2008 he became Chief

Executive Officer Under the terms of the Companys Restated Operating Agreement made as of January
20 2011 there are two classes of members of the Company Class Members and Class Members
Class Members who are also referred to as Managing Members have the exclusive voting power and

authority to manage and
operate the day-to-day business of the Company to detennine any distributions

to be made and to admit new members Mr Jackson David Suzuki and trust controlled by Mr
Woodworth and his wife for the benefit of Mr Woodworths children are the sole Class Managing
Members of the Company Class Members have very limited voting rights primarily restricted to

decisions to dissolve the Company which require the unanimous consent of the members Class

Members have certain rights to receive cash distributions in proportion to their capital accounts upon
liquidation of the Company and may otherwise receive distributions as determined by the Class
Members Class shares are currently held by Loudmouth Investment Group LLC for the benefit of 14

individuals complete copy of the Companys Restated Operating Agreement is set forth in Exhibit 2b
to this Offering Statement

Upon joining the Company in 2007 Larry Jackson developed the Companys marketing and sales

strategy with focus on securing high-profile sponsorships and much broader brand awareness After

bursting onto the global scene with two-time Major winning golfer John Daly in 2009 wearing our brand
the Companys designs gained more worldwide exposure when they were worn by the Olympic Silver

Medal Norwegian Curling Team during the 2010 Winter Games The Company currently has

sponsorship agreements with Mr Daly and the Norwegian Curling Team Mr Dalys agreement is

terminable at any time by either party The Norwegian Teams agreement extends through the upcoming
Winter Olympic Games and through 2014
The Company started as mens golf apparel company and has grown into worldwide mens and
womens sportswear company that is expanding into other apparel and lifestyle sectors Loudmouth has

had an influence on the trend of sportswear becoming more colorful Women also like the direction of

Loudmouth fashion as indicated by our sales to that market Loudmouth has benefitted by focusing on
the niche market of extremely colorful and unique golf apparel Although many apparel companies have

begun to adopt the bright colorful style into their own lines Loudmouth has 12 year head start in

generating customer awareness and loyalty

The Company is expanding into other categories such as ski apparel beachwear and athletic wear At the

2012 Summer Games in London Loudmouth beachwear was prominently displayed during primetime
NBC Olympic coverage and on The Today Show on athletes Todd Rogers and Phil Daihausser 2008
Olympic beach volleyball gold medalists
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Gross Profit for our fiscal year ended 2012 was 57% or $4.5 million on revenue of $7.9 million

resulting in net income for that period of $438879 Gross Profit for the six months ended June 30 2013

was 55% or $2.5 million on revenue of $4.5 million resulting in net income for that period of $266472
significant portion of current sales are produced from our higher margin direct online web sales

channel Gross profit percentage is expected to decrease due to an expected increase in lower margin
sales from our wholesale and distributor channels

We currently have 15 full-time and 16 part-time employees and expect to increase to 20 full-time and 20

part-time employees in the next 12 months by using portion of the proceeds of this Offering There are

no collective bargaining agreements with our current employees Our management intends to establish

some form of an employee stock ownership plan within the next 15 months since the current owners and

board members believe it is an important part of employee morale and performance to participate in the

success of the Company

Our business is cyclical because the golf season and the number of rounds played in the markets we serve

fluctuate based on number of factors including the weather Accordingly our sales leading up to and

during the warm-weather golf season as well as the December holiday gift-giving season have

historically contributed to higher percentage of our annual net revenues and annual net operating

income than other periods in our fiscal year

Description of Property

The Company leases all of its property which consists of our office space in California and several

foreign shipping depots

Our current offices are located at 1155 Chess Drive Foster City CA 94404 where we occupy units 100
102 103 105 and 106 We pay $6520.36 per month in rent for this space and common area utilities As
of November 2013 our lease for this space will be on month-to-month basis but we do not expect
termination of the lease for at least the next six months We also lease three foreign shipping depots or

warehouse spaces in Canada the United Kingdom and Australia on month-to-month basis These

facilities are less than 2000 square feet and sparsely furnished with metal racks but they enable the

Company to reduce its shipping costs by storing and
distributing our products within these countries and

avoiding more frequent cross-border shipping and related costs

Market Opportunity

In the United States alone over $350 billion is spent annually on apparel Currently best known for golf

apparel Loudmouth already attracts relatively high income golf consumers Having successfully

penetrated this market over the
past 12 years Loudmouth is now finnly established among golf apparel

brands The Company is now pursuing major new market opportunities in the ski and beach apparel
markets in addition to the golf industry The

exercise/yogalathletic wear market is also potential market

for Loudmouths recognizable designs

Product and Strategy

Loudmouth started with limited marketing budget to build its brand in the ultra-competitive golf apparel

segment However within years Loudmouth products and designs were identified and seen on

primetime television at the US Open British Open PGA Championship Australian Masters and

numerous other PGA events In addition at least 15 LPGA members wear Loudmouth apparel on tour

including Pornanong Phatlum Jee Young Lee and Jeong JJ Jang Loudmouth clothing appears in

major motion pictures such as Hall Pass and Friends with Benefits and TV shows such as Jay Leno
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Jimmy Kimmel The David Feherty Show Saturday Night Live Disney ABC Primetime Golf Channels

flagship Big Break and many others Loudmouth builds its customer loyalty by providing steady

stream of creative new designs and products Retailers were once hesitant to carry Loudmouth products

because of their relative novelty but are now major buyers Our wholesale revenues have outpaced our

web-based sales growth rate increasing from 10% of revenue to 45% in just years What started out as

mens only apparel company is now also womens apparel company with over 40% of all of our sales

now to women effectively more than doubling our market potential in the same time span Loudmouth

copyrights most of its designs trademarks all logos and aggressively protects its intellectual property

International

Loudmouths fastest growing sales segments are international wholesale web sales and distribution The

Companys total revenue for the year ended December 31 2012 was $7.9 million The percentage of the

Companys revenue attributable to international operations by country is as follows Europe 7% Canada

8%Japan 4% and Australia 5% The Company conducts much of its foreign operations through its

three wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries Loudmouth Golf Australia PTY Limited Loudmouth Golf Ltd

UK and 0876342 B.C Ltd Canada Through an entity it formed in China known as Wholly Foreign

Owned Enterprise WFOE Loudmouth recently obtained ownership of one of the licenses granted to

foreign enterprises by the Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce to conduct e-commerce

retailing in China very difficult market for foreign entities to enter This positions us to significantly

expand our business into this potentially huge market as our brand awareness increases Loudmouths

diversification into new product categories and world markets using its blossoming global brand will

afford us the opportunity to substantially increase revenues and market opportunity

Management

Loudmouth founder Scott Woodworth began the Company in 2000 and was the sole Member Manager of

the Company through 2007 Mr Woodworth received B.A from Brown University in Semiotics Prior

to starting Loudmouth he was self-employed freelance graphic designer for over 10 years assisting
such companies as AIG Prudential Life and Janus with their marketing efforts Lany Jackson became an

investor in the Company in 2007 and became Chief Executive Officer in 2008 Mr Jackson helped to

fund our fledging brand and brought decades of business experience to our management as Chief

Executive Officer He joined the Company after spending much of his career in high-profile tech venture

startups such as Cosine Communications and Ascend Communications Alan Wallace who is our

Executive Vice President of Sales is an executive who brings over three decades of high-level apparel
sales experience to the Company most recently with Perry Ellis International in Miami Florida Mr
Wallace oversees the Companys Director of Sales North America who manages an independent sales

representative network of 29 people Marcie Low has been our Chief Operating Officer since May 2010
Prior to joining the Company Ms Low was Chief Operating Officer of Minor Ventures in San Francisco
California Michelle Bejarano has served as the Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company since

October 2013 and Controller of the Company since October 2012 She served as the member manager of

her public accounting firm Bejarano PLLC from February 2007 to September 2013 She previously
served as Accounting Manager of Ryland Homes from December 2004 to March 2007 and as Audit

Manager of Barry Moore PC from May 1999 to December 2004 Ms Bejarano received B.S degree
in Accounting from Arizona State University in 1998 and has been Certified Public Accountant licensed

in Arizona since February 2006 You should refer to the Section entitled Managing Members Officers
and Significant Employees of the Company for additional information regarding our management

Licensing
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Our licensing division was only recently established in January of 2011 and thus our license agreements

currently comprise less than 5% of the companys revenues However we are actively pursuing new

licensing arrangements and expect this segment of our business to grow Under our typical licensing

arrangement we receive 10% of the sales revenues generated by the licensee using our intellectual

property for term of to years with an option to renew for an additional term of years We also

typically receive guaranteed up-front royalty payment and guaranteed minimum annual royalty

payment thereafter

As licensor the licensing of our products and designs is becoming an increasingly important part of our

business as the Loudmouth brand becomes more firmly established and potential licensees are

approaching us with increased frequency The Company currently has 12 license agreements with such

well-known companies as Golden Pacific/Travelers Choice Luggage Miss Fantastic/Topline Swirnwear

Croakies USA Dawgs Haas-Jordan Umbrellas and Druh Belts Licensing expands the Loudmouth brand

and profit potential with minimal capital investment Other product categories that we are actively

exploring or have implemented include Loudmouth wine watches headbands tote bags backpacks

neckwear exercise wear and pajamas

As licensee we have entered into arrangements with top-shelf brands such as Sanrio Hello Kitty

Nickelodeon SpongeBob SquarePants The Dallas Cowboys and many popular NCAA Teams

Our most important intellectual properties are the copyrights of patterns that are designed by the

Companys founder/designer and the Loudmouth trademarks samples of which are set forth below

Copyrights

-4
D..B.fl BI..t OpCI.d D..

ty w- f-r

Sh.q.1.k Bl SthbL Sl...GSd SpIh .I.I.C

Registered Loudmouth logos

Some Guys Come To Play.

Web-based Sales vs Wholesale
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fl The most fun you can have

with your pants on

Web-based sales currently account for approximately 55% of Loudmouth sales and wholesale sales

account for approximately 45% We expect the percentage of wholesale sales to increase over time as

result of greater acceptance of our LOUD designs in the market Wholesale customers include but are

not limited to International Distributors Golf Town Nordstroms Dicks Sporting Goods PGA Tour

Superstores and Zappos
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Marketing/Public Relations

Loudmouth currently has employees dedicated to marketing and public relations at our principal office in

California We hope to continue expanding our marketing team in other countries as funding pennits

Loudmouth historically has not had much of its revenue reflected in typical order backlog Loudmouth

receives approximately 55% of its revenue from web-based direct to individual consumer sales which are

not reflected in order backlog The Company does not have way to predict sales to this type of

customer Most of the rest of our revenue is derived from sales to wholesale customers In late 2012 the

Company created and implemented system to take orders from wholesale customers that would result in

future sales However that system only keeps track of units ordered and does not allow snapshots of

historical data therefore we are not able to report on historical backlog By virtue of creating this future

order system for wholesale customers and guaranteeing delivery to those customers that placed future

orders some of the demand from our website customers was not met This future-order system was

developed to enable us to better forecast purchases from our suppliers

We outsource substantially all of our production to independent suppliers The manufacturer that supplies
most of our bottoms pants shorts skorts etc and 80% of our overall product sales is located in China
This Chinese manufacturer has been our primary supplier since 2007 and two of our largest shirt

manufacturers have been our supplier for those products since 2008 and 2010 The bulk of our purchases
are shipped to our warehouse in Foster City California Product sold to some of our larger wholesale
customers is shipped directly to them We believe our suppliers can handle our forecasted growth

Loudmouths primary pants vendor has created Made To Order MTO production line that enables our
customers to custom tailor and customize their Loudmouth clothing online Our MTO line provides us
with flexibility to provide options to customers desiring to create Loudmouth products not available in

our standard line such as sport coats hoodies and pants with cargo pockets for example We also utilize

MTO to satisfy customer demand for items not in stock but able to be produced from
existing fabric in

stock

The Company is an approved licensee for approximately 40 NCAA school programs Using the MTO
system customer can order our products in their schools colors and with their schools embroidered

logo We expect that this particular market segment will continue to grow as we become the licensee for

more schools

We also expect to utilize MTO which allows for minimal inventory and rapid order turnaround for our

upcoming Chinese e-commerce website which we expect to have operational on or before the end of
2013

The Companys LMx Membership Club allows many of our biggest fans to join this club for
quarterly

fee and receive items created exclusively for club members This program has been in place for less than

year and continues to add members

The Companys Licensee Drop Ship Program enables the Company to take orders of licensed products
and have the licensee ship the product directly to the customer without the Company ever having to take

delivery of the products

Most of our diversification into new product lines will come from licensing our patterns to various

companies in the markets the Company would like to enter This enables the Company to enter new
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markets with experienced partners while lowering the financial barrier to entry and increasing the

likelihood of success

The majority of the Companys revenue is derived from the golf apparel business Approximately 55%

of the Companys revenue comes from w.LoudmouthgoIf.com the Companys website This is an

established method of sales for our types of products as indicated by the numerous companies that sell

golf apparel on the internet including Nike Golfsrnith and Dicks Sporting Goods The Company also

sells its products to golf shops on and off the course and to sporting goods stores and other retailers

There are many brand names that the Company competes with in this market including such well-

established names like Nike Adidas and Puma Many of the Companys competitors have significantly

greater revenue and market share The Companys competitive advantage against these large competitors

is its distinctive LOUD designs The Company does not expect tl1e golf apparel market to grow

significantly instead we expect the Companys growth in this market to come primarily from taking

market share from some of the less colorful non-distinctive golf apparel brands in addition to expanding

our product line outside the world of golf and internationally The Company does not compete on price

but rather through our distinctive clearly Loudmouth designs

We believe that the proceeds from this Offering will enable us to better meet demand for our products by

allowing us to fund product purchases during our seasonally slow sales periods The offering proceeds

will also assist in the reduction of production costs by allowing us to purchase fabric in greater quantities

which yield volume discounts
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CAPITALIZATION

Set forth below is the capitalization of the Company as of the most recent balance sheet date adjusted to

reflect any subsequent stock splits stock dividends recapitalizations or refinancings and as adjusted to

reflect the sale of the minimum and maximum amount of securities in this Offering and the use of the net

proceeds therefrom

As of

6/30/2013

Amount Outstanding

As Adjusted

Minimum Maximum

MANAGING MEMBERS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT
EMPLOYEES OFTHE COMPANY

The following list names each person who serves as managing member executive officer or senior

employee of the Company The Managing Members are not subject to term limits but may continue in

that capacity as long as they remain Class members pursuant to the Companys Operating Agreement

Name Position

Larry Jackson 50 Managing Member and Chief Executive officer

Scott Woodworth 52 Managing Member and President

David Suzuki 46 Managing Member

Alan Wallace 59 Executive Vice President World-Wide Sales

Marcie Low 43 Chief Operating Officer

Satoshi Kaneko 40 Chief Information Officer

Michelle Bejarano 44 Controller

Scott Woodworth Loudmouths founder began the Company in 2000 and was the sole manager of the

company through 2007 Mr Woodworth received B.A from Brown University in Semiotics Prior to

starting Loudmouth he was self-employed freelance graphic designer for over 10 years assisting such

Debt

Short-Term Debt Average interest rate 9% 110000 10000 110000

Long-Term Debt Line of Credit Average

interest rate 5.5% 749434

Long-Term Debt 7% Notes Issued via this

Offering $4000000 $5000000

Total Debt 859434 $4 110000 $5110000

Members Equity $2477404 $2477404 $2477404
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companies as AIG Prudential Life and Janus with their marketing efforts He has served as our President

and Managing Member since he founded the Company in early 2000

Larry Jackson has served as our Chief Executive Officer and Managing Member since 2008 From
2002 through 2007 Mr Jackson was engaged as consultant to and investor in multiple real estate

investments and high technology startups Before joining the Company Mr Jackson served as Senior

Vice President of Worldwide Sales for Cosine Communications from 1998 to 2002 He has also served

as Vice President of Sales in Asia Pacific and General Manager and Vice President of Europe Middle

East and Africa for Ascend Communications from 1993 to 1998 Mr Jackson received B.S degree in

Computer and Electrical Engineering from the University of California at Santa Barbara in 1986

David Suzuki has been Managing Member of Loudmouth Golf since 2007 From 2008 to the present
Mr Suzuki serves as Chief Executive Officer and Founder of KargoCard leading prepaid processing

and distribution company in China Before joining the Company Mr Suzuki served as partner of

Worldview Technology Partners Silicon Valley-based venture capital fund with over US$1.3 Billion

under management from 1998-2008 Prior to Worldview Mr Suzuki was an associate at JAFCO
America Ventures Mr Suzuki began his career in Tokyo where he worked for Ernst Young and

Lehman Brothers Japan Mr Suzuki graduated from the University of California Berkeley with B.A

degree in Economics

Alan Wallace has served as the Companys Executive Vice President World-Wide Sales since April

2009 and has over 30 years of sales experience in the
apparel industry Prior to joining the Company

Mr Wallace served as National Sales Manager at Peny Ellis International in Miami Florida from January

2005 to March 2009 as Senior Vice President of Alan Stuart from 2001 to 2005 as Executive Vice

President of Guy Laroche Paris from 1999 to 2001 and as Executive Vice President of Sales and

Merchandising from 1993 to 1999

Marcie Low has been Chief Operating Officer of the Company since May 2010 Prior to joining the

Company she served as Chief Operating Officer of Minor Ventures in San Francisco from November
2005 to February 2010 and as Senior Director of Human Resources of Grand Central Communications

from March 2004 to October 2005 Ms Low received B.S degree in Managerial Economics from the

University of California at Davis in 1993

Satoshi Kaneko has been the Companys Chief Information Officer since 2008 While he devotes

approximately 30 hours per week to the Company he also serves as Senior Development Manager for

Oracle position he has held since 2006 He received Masters of Information Engineering from

Hiroshima University in 1998

Michelle Bejarano has served as the Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company since October 2013
and Controller of the Company since October 2012 She served as the member manager of her public

accounting firm Bejarano PLLC from February 2007 to September 2013 She previously served as

Accounting Manager of Ryland Homes from December 2004 to March 2007 and as Audit Manager of

Barry Moore PC from May 1999 to December 2004 Ms Bejarano received B.S degree in

Accounting from Arizona State University in 1998 and has been Certified Public Accountant licensed in

Arizona since February 2006

REMUNERATION OF MANAGIIG MEMBERS AND OFFICERS
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Set forth below is the aggregate annual remuneration of each or the three highest paid persons who are

officers or directors as group during the Companys last fiscal year

CashAccrual Basis Other9 Total

Scott Woodworth President and $137220 $96633 $233853

Managing Member

Larry Jackson Chief Executive $130596 $26783 $157379
Officer and

Managing Member

Alan Wallace Executive VP World- $104968 $104968
Wide Sales

Satoshi Kaneko Chief Infonnation $85000 $85000
Officer

Marcie Low Chief Operating $58378 $58378
Officer

David Suzuki Managing Member $160000 $160000

Total $516162 $281416 S799.578

Managthg Members as $267816 $283416 $551232
group

The Company does not have employment agreements with any of its Managing Members officers or

other personnel The Managing Members are prohibited from competing with the Company for period
of one year after leaving the Company without the consent of the other Members pursuant to

Section 4.5.2 of the Companys Restated Operating Agreement dated as of January 20 2011 As of June

30 2013 the Company owed Larry Jackson and Scott Woodworth accrued pay and expenses in the

amounts of $113550 and $3500 respectively Such amounts will not be paid from the proceeds of this

Offering Instead the Company and these individuals have agreed that the Company will pay down these

amounts as cash flows may allow

Other than the capital contributions from our equity owners and loans from Messrs Jackson and

Woodworth we are not doing business with any of our managing members officers key personnel or

10% owners of our equity interests or any of their relatives
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT
AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

Set forth below are the percentages of the Companys voting securities held of record by or for the benefit

of

each of the three highest paid persons who are officers and directors of the issuer

all officers and directors as group and

each shareholder who owns more than 10% of any class of the issuers securities

Percentage owned
Title of

Name and address of Owner before and after
Class

offering

The Woodworth Living Trust
10

2l9llHydeRoad 32.61%

Sonoma CA 95476

Larry Jackson

7512 Phillips Blvd
24 46/No 60-254

Orlando Florida 32819

David Suzuki

25 Mountain View P1 20.3 8%
San Mateo CA 94402

Loudmouth Investment Group
LLC

22.55%
1155 Chess Drive 102

Foster City CA 94404

All Officers and Managing
and Members as group 80.24%

10
Scott Woodworth and his wife are co-trustees of this trust for the benefit of their children and have

voting control of these shares
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INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

The Companys Chief Executive Officer Larry Jackson and its President Scott Woodworth each made

one-year loans to the Company to fund operating costs in 2009 in the principal amounts of $50000 and

bearing interest at the rate of 9% per annum The principal of these loans which matured in December
2010 has not been repaid Each loan has accrued interest due and owing of $32095 and continues to

accrue interest based upon its original terms until paid Messrs Jackson and Woodworth waived the

original maturity date and any penalties associated therewith

Larry Jackson Scott Woodworth and David Suzuki jointly and individually guaranteed repayment of the

principal and interest due on the Companys $750000 Line of Credit Loan with Old Florida National

Bank Orlando Florida used to fund inventory purchases which will be paid off in full with portion of

the proceeds of this Offering

During 2011 2012 and the six-month period ended June 30 2013 the Company reimbursed Scott

Woodworth Larry Jackson and David Suzuki for the personal tax liability payments each made to the

Internal Revenue Service and state governments attributable to their pro rata shares of the Companys
income for the years 2009 through 2012 These reimbursements totaled $343913 to Mr Woodworth
$126783 to Mr Jackson and $317000 to Mr Suzuki

Other than these arrangements we are not doing business with any of our officers Managing Members
key personnel or 10% owners
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

The securities being offered hereby are 7% fixed rate secured notes the Notes that are nonconvertible

and mature on January 2019 Interest accruing on the Notes at the fixed rate of 7% per annum is

payable semi-annually on January and July The Notes are callable after years from the date of

issuance at 102% of their face value and after years at 101% of face value The Notes will have

preference upon liquidation in light of their status as secured debt of the Company The Notes will be

issued under Trust Indenture dated as of
_____________ 2013 the Trust Indenture between U.S

Bank National Association as Trustee the Trustee and the Company and will be secured by first

priority lien on all of the Companys inventory accounts receivable patents and copyrights licensing

agreements and bank accounts debt service reserve fund equal to one year of interest will be

established by the Company upon issuance of the Notes and maintained until maturity The Notes will

rank senior to all of the Companys future indebtedness if any

Under the Trust Indenture the Company will be required to maintain minimum interest coverage ratio

EBITDA to annual interest of 1.25 to commencing with the year 2014

The Trust Indenture also prohibits any distributions of any nature whether in cash property securities or

otherwise to the Companys members if any default occurs or exists with respect to payments of interest

or principal due under the Notes or any other Event of Default occurs or exists This restriction would not

apply to payments to members of normal compensation for services rendered or for tax related

distributions.The Notes provide that each of the following constitutes an Event of Default with
respect to

the Notes

our failure to make payment when due under the Notes of any interest payment within five business

days of when the interest payment is due or ii of the entire outstanding balance of
principal and interest

on the maturity date

our breach of any term of the Trust Indenture or

if we voluntarily file petition under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or under any similar or successor

Federal statute relating to bankruptcy insolvency arrangements or reorganizations or if we fail to obtain

vacation or stay of involuntary proceedings brought for the reorganization dissolution or liquidation of us
or if we are adjudged bankrupt or upon our dissolution business failure or discontinuance as going
concern business or if trustee or receiver shall be appointed for us or for our property or if there is an

attachment execution or other judicial seizure of any portion of our assets and such seizure is not

discharged within 10 days

If any Event of Default occurs and is continuing at the option of the holders the entire outstanding

principal balance due under the Notes and all accrued and unpaid interest on the Notes will become

immediately due and payable by us without further action or notice at the option of the holders

All Notes will be issued in fully registered form The Company is entitled to treat the registered holder

shown on its records as the owner of the Note for all purposes Ownership of Notes may be registered In

the name of any two or more named persons as joint tenants with right of
survivorship as tenants in

common or as tenants by the entireties and payment of principal and interest on any Notes so registered

will be made to the person or persons entitled to receive such payment as their interests may appear

If holder loses his or her Note or the Note is stolen or destroyed the Company will issue new Note in

the place of the lost stolen or destroyed Note if the holder gives the Company bond sufficient to

indemnify the Company against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss
theft or destruction of any Note or the issuance of new Note

There is no public market for the Notes and none is expected to develop for their purchase and sale

01485772 21



Beginning with the 2013 fiscal year end in addition to the financial information provided in this Offering

Circular the Company will provide copy of its financial statements to all holders of Notes within 120

days after the end of each fiscal year

We urge you to read the Notes and the Trust Indenture because they and not this description will fully

define your rights as holder of the Notes copy of the proposed form of Notes and the Trust Indenture

are attached as Exhibits 3b and 3c

of page intentionally left blank
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2013 AND DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

UNAUDITED
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LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

UNAUDITED

June 30 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 722.829 340560 217333

Account receivable net 651035 782801 576080

Prepaid cxpcnses 104516 80412

\endor deposits 527918 336128 84737

Inventory 2159470 2142586 2350076

Total current assets 4165768 3682487 3228226

OTHER ASSETS 77644 27644 21396

Total assets 4243412 3710.131 3249622

LIABILITiES AND MEMBERS EOUITY

CURRENT I.JABTLITJES

Accounts payable and accruedexpenscs 814414 612580 614004

Deferred revenue 92160 87207

Related party notes payable 110.000 120.000 120000

Line of credit 749434 603.057 400000

Total current liabilities 1.766.008 1422844 1134004

Total liabilities 1766.008 1422.844 1134004

MEMBERS EQUITY 2.477404 2287287 2.115.618

Total liabilities and members equity 4243412 3710.131 3249622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets



LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC
CON SOLIDA1ED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

UNAUDITED

Six months ended Year ended Year ended

June 30 December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2011

REVENUE

Revenue
4526.540 7861738 8525.164

COSTS OF GOODS SOLD

Costs of goods sold 2059255 3381.876 4236976

Gross profit 2467285 4479862 4238.188

EXPENSES

Sales and marketing 1018219 1737.798 1339.844

Operations 186959 396666 357221
General and adminstrative 970A29 1863.433 1651917

Total
expenses before interest 2175607 3.997897 1348982

iNCOME BEFORE INTEREST 291678 481965 889206

Interest expense 25206 43.086 38.074

NET INCOIvIE
266472 438879 $85u32

The accompanying notes are an integmlpt of these Statements



LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS EQUITY

UNAUD1TED

Total

Paid-in Retained Members

Capital Earnings Equity

Balance December 31 2010 125100 1353518 1478618

Contributions 230000 230000

Distributions 444132 444132

Net Income 2011
851132 851132

Balance December 312011 355100 1.76ft518 2115618

Distributions 267210 267210

Net Income 2012
_____________ 438879 438879

Balance December 12012 355100 1932187 2287287

Distributions 76355 76355

Net Income period ending June 30 2013 266.472 266.472

Balance June 302013 355.100 2.122.304 2477.404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements



LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
UNAUDITED

Six months ended Year ended Year ended

June 30 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 266472 438879 85.1132

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash flows from operatiu2 activities-

Net changes in assets and liabilities-

Receivables 131766 206321 97174

Prepaid expenses 24104 80.412

Vendor deposits 191790 251391 84.737

Inventoiy 16884 207490 742150

Other assets 50000 6248 11451

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 210027 41805 1.28388

Deferred revenue 3240 43.978

Total adjustments 55.775 251499J 807124

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 322247 187380 44008

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments on related party notes payable 10000

Proceeds from bardc line of credit 149000 962079 600000

Repayments on bank line of credit 2623 759022 410796

Members contributions 230000

Members distributions 76355 267210 444132

Net cash flows used by financing activities 60022 64153 24928

NET INCREASE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 382269 19080

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Beginning of year 340560 217333 198253

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS End of year 722829 340560 217333

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASII FLOWS

INFORMT1ON
Cash paid during the year for interest 17427 25228 15278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statenients
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LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 302013 AND DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

UNAUDITED

COMPANY OPERATIONS AN SUMMiRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization-

The financial statements presented are those of Loudmouth Golf LLC the Company The

company was organized with the puipose of creating new LOUD designs for mens golf apparel The

Company was organized as limited liability company under the laws of the state of Delaware and was

formed in January 2007 The Company has its principal offices located in Foster City California The

Company sells its apparel through its website and also sells wholesale merchandise to retailers The

Company has wholly owned subsidiaries located in Canada the United Kingdom and Australia which

sell warehouse and ship the Companys products As percentage of the Companys total revenue

Canada United Kingdom and Australia represent 8% 7% and 5% respectively

Recoiition of Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are recognized on the accrual method The Company recognizes revenue

when title transfers to the customer which is typically at shipping point Revenue is generally realized

or realizable and earned when all of the following criteria are met persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists between the company and the customers delivery has occurred the
price to

the customer is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured Expenses are

recognized when incurred rather than when paid

Cash and Cash Equivalents-

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity

date of three months or less to be cash equivalents Cash equivalents may include cash deposits money
market funds and CDs The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of

the instruments The Company maintains cash in bank accounts that at times exceed federally insured

limits The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with high quality fmancial institutions and

does not believe it is exposed to any significant financial risk

Principles of Consolidation-

The consolidated fmancial statements include the balances of Loudmouth Golf LLC and its

subsidiaries All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Income Taxes-

The Company is limited liability company and therefore does not incur income taxes The

income of the Company is taxed at the member level on their pro rata share of income and expenses

The income of the foreign subsidiaries is subject to income tax in their respective legal jurisdictions

The amount for all periods presented .is immaterial and included in general and administrative

expenses

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require Company

management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Company and recognize tax liability or asset if

the Company has taken an uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon

examination by the Internal Revenue Service Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by

the Company and has concluded that as of June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 and 201 there are

no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of liability or

asset or disclosure in the financial statements



LOU DMOUTH GOLF LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SI ATEMENTS
JUNE 30 2013 AND DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 201

Iii AUDITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Estimates-

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
These affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ

from these estimates

Shipping and Handling Costs-

The Companys shipping and handling costs are reported as component of Costs of Goods
Sold in the Statements of Theome

Trade Receivables.-

The Companys accounts receivables consist primarily of wholesale distributor sales The

company analyzes its accounts receivable on quarterly basis Management uses its discretion and past
sales and receivables experience to determine its allowance for doubtful accounts Bad debt expense
was $65613 for the period ended June 30 2013 and $53625 and $11101 for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Inventory-

All inventories are valued at lower of cost or market with cost determined by the average cost

method

Policy-

The Company generally accepts returns and exchanges up to 45 days from the date of purchase

Most of the Companys customers whom have sales returns are given store credits for the retUrn of store

merchandise Returns are treated as reduction in revenues when received and returned to inventory at

that time Wholesale returns must be approved by management and obtain return authorization

Historically sales returns and exchanges have been immaterial As of June 30 2013 an.d December 31
2012 and 2011 Management does not believe reserve for sales returns is necessary

Members Equity-

The Company pays equity distributions to the Companys members to pay their income tax

liability attributable to their pro rata share of the Companys profits

Concentration of Risk-

The Company is dependent upon apparel manufacturers to manufacture its products One

supplier accounted for approximately 83% 82% and 79% of total purchases for the
period ended June

30 2013 and years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Management believes other

suppliers could provide similar products on comparable terms change in suppliers however could

cause delay in fulfillment of customer orders and possible loss of sales which could adversely affect

operating results Management believes that the Company maintains sufficient inventory levels to

minimize the impact that change in suppliers would have on operating results



LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLiDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 20.13 ANID DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

UNAUDITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continue2

MgEpense

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred The Company incurred advertising costs

of $259731 $467616 and $186304 during the six months ended June 30 2013 and the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

MAJOR CONTRACTS COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As o.f Juiie 30 2013 the company did not enter or execute any major contracts or commitments

with suppliers vendors or customers or with any business
partners for the delivery of materials and

sales of products

The Company leases its headquarters
and foreign subsidiary locations through operating leases

The company also has no contingency plans on the leases of the buildings but intends to renew the

contracts of lease when they expire As of June 30 2013 minimum future rental commitments under

these operating leases are $27600 for the year ending December 31 2013 There are no further rental

commitments for the years thereafter Rent expense was $38400 $63000 and $46812 for the six

months ended June 30 201.3 and the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

INVENTQRY

Inventory is valued at the lower cost or market with cost determined by the average cost

method Inventories consisted of the following

June 30 December 31 Decineber 31

2013 2012 2011

Raw materials .$ 344307 386193 273473

Finished goods 1815163 1756393 2076603

Total inventory 2159470 2142586 2350076

RELATED PARTY NOTES PAYABLE

The related party notes payable with members and one executive are unsecured debt with

interest calculated at the annual yearly simple rate of 9% The notes are due upon demand The notes

consisted of the following

June 30 December 31 Decmeber 31

2013 2012 2011

Balance 110000 120000 120000

Principal payments 10000

Interest expense 5338 10827 22274



LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2013 AND DECEMBER31 2012 AND 2011

UNAUDITED

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has $750000 bank line of credit The line hears an interest rate at prime plus

.O% per annum It is secured by all Company assets and personally guaranteed by the Companys

members The line of credit expires June 2014 The Company is in compliance with all financial

covenants imposed by the line of credit agreement The line of credit consisted of the following

June 30 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011

Balance 749434 603057 400000

interest expense 17660 29221 15.278

Interest rate 5.5% 57% 5.7%

INTERIM PERIOD

In the opinion of the Companys management the financial statements for the interim period

ending of June 30 2013 have been represented fairly in all material respects in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles In managements opinion all adjustments necessary for fair

statement of results for the interim period have been included All such adjustments are of normal

recurring nature

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION

The functional currency
of the Company is in U.S Dollar accordingly the Companys

financial assets and liabilities are translated into U.S dollars at the end-of-period exchange rates while

non-imancial assets and liabilities are translated into U.S dollars using historical exchange rates

Income and expense items are translated at average exchange rates in effect during the period Foreign

currency gains or losses are included in operations

SUBSEOUENLYNTh

Management has evaluated all subsequent events through the date the financial statements were

available to be issued on September 15 2013 No subsequent events occurred during this period which

would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements
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Consent and Certification by Underwriter/Dealer-Manager

The undersigned hereby consents to being named as the underwriter/dealer-manager in an offering

statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by Loudmouth Golf LLC pursuant to

Regulation in connection with proposed crMg oF7% fixed rate secured notes to the public

The undersigned hereby certifies that it furnished the statements and information set forth in the

offering statement with respect to the undersigned its members and officers that such statements and

information are accurate complete and fully responsive to the requirements of Parts II and III of the

Offering Statement thereto and do not omit any information required to be stated therein with respect

of any such persons or necessary to make the statements and information therein with respect to any

of them not misleading

If Preliminary Offering Circulars are distributed the undersigned hereby undertakes to keep an

accurate and complete record of the name and address of each person furnished Preliminary

Offering Circular and if such Preliminary Offering Circular is inaccurate or inadequate in any

material respect to furnish revised Preliminary Offering Circular or Final Offering Circular to all

persons to whom the securities are to be sold at least 48 hours prior to the mailing of any confirmation

of sale to such persons or to send such circular to such persons under circumstances that it would

normally be received by them 48 hours prior to their receipt of confirmation of the sale

Lake Forest Securities LLC

By_
Name
Title

Date
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PART III EXHIBITS

Index to Exhibits

Exhibit No Description Sequential Page No

Dealer Agreernent

2a Certificate of Fornrntion of Loudmouth Golf LLC

2b Operating Agreement of Loudmouth Golf LLC

3a See Exhibit 2.2 for provisions of Operating Agreement defining

rights of owners

3b Form of Note

3c Form of Trust Indenture

FonTi of Subscription Documents

See Exhibit 3c

11 Opinion of Clark Hill Thorp Reed regarding the legality of the

securities covered by the Offering Circular

Previously Filed

To be filed by Amendment

Signed Opinion to be filed by Amendment
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this Amendment No to its offering statement to be signed on its behalf

by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in the City of Foster City State of California on October

z3 2013

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

By_____
Larry Jackson

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Member

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities

and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

______________________________
Chief Executive Officer and October 23 2013

arry Jackso Managing Member

.President and Managing October 2013

ott oodworth Member

____________________________ Acting Chief Financial Officer October 23 2013

and Controller
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EXTIIIBIT

Dealer Agreement

be filed by Amendment
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EXHIBIT 2a

Certificate of Formation

filed
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EXHIBIT 2b

Operating Agreement

filed
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EXHIBIT 3a
See Exhibit 2.2 for provisions of Operating Agreement defining right of owners
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EXHIBIT 3b
Form of Note

filed
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EXHIBIT 3c

Form of Trust Indenture

01485772 E3c
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TRUST INDENTURE

BETWEEN

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

AND

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

as Trustee

RELATING TO

$5000000

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC
2013 SECURED NOTES

Dated September 2013
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TRUST INDENTURE

THIS TRUST INDENTURE Indenture dated as of September 2013 between

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC Delaware limited liability company the Company and U.S

BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION national banking association as trustee and its

successor in trust and its assignees the Trustee

WHEREAS the Company intends to issue the Notes pursuant to this Indenture and

WHEREAS as security for the payment of the Notes issued pursuant to this Indenture

the Company has agreed to assign and pledge to the Trustee the Collateral as hereinafter

defined and

WHEREAS all things necessary to make the Notes when authenticated by the Trustee

and issued and delivered as provided in this Indenture the legal valid binding and enforceable

limited obligations of the Company according to the import thereof and to create valid

assignment and pledge of the Collateral to the payment of the Notes have been done and

perfonned and the execution and delivery of this Indenture and the execution issuance and

delivery of the Notes subject to the terms hereof have in all respects been authorized

NOW ThEREFORE in consideration of the premises and of the covenants and

undertakings herein expressed the parties hereto agree as follows

ARTICLE

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions In addition to terms elsewhere defined in this Indenture the

following words and terms as used in this Indenture and the preambles hereto shall have the

following meanings unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or

intent and such definitions shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the

terms and words herein defined

Accounts shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Authorized Denominations means denominations of $5000 or any integral multiple

of $5000 in excess thereof

Beneficial Owner means when the Notes are held in bookentry only system the

owner of Note or portion thereof for federal income tax purposes

Business Day means any day other than Saturday Sunday day on

which banking institutions in the city in which the designated corporate trust office of the

Trustee or its Note registrar paying agent or tender agent offices is located are closed or

day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed or the payment system of the Federal

Reserve is not operational

Chattel Paper shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code



Code shall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of Delaware

on the date of this Indenture and as amended from time to time

Collateral shall mean collectively the Accounts Chattel Paper Deposit Accounts

Documents Equipment Electronic Chattel Paper Fixtures General Intangibles Goods

Instruments Inventory Investment Property Letter-of-Credit Rights Proceeds and Supporting

Obligations and all other assets of the Company whether now owned or acquired in the future

and all funds held at any time under this Indenture

Company means the Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware limited liability company

Counsel means an attorney or firm thereof admitted to practice law before the highest

court of any state in the United States of America or the District of Columbia

Deposit Accounts shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Depository means any securities depositoiy that is clearing agency under federal law

operating and maintaining with its participants or otherwise book entry system to record

ownership of book entry interests in Notes and to effect transfers of book entry interests in

Notes in book entry form the use of which will not impair the federal tax exemption of interest

on the Notes and includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company DTC
limited purpose trust company New York New York

Documents shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

EBITDA shall mean the Companys net income before interest taxes depreciation

and amortization all as reflected on the annual financial statements provided pursuant to Section

4.01

Earnings shall mean investment income consisting only of such interest and dividends

derived from investment of moneys deposited in the Reserve Fund

Electronic Chattel Paper shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Eligible Investments shall mean such of the following as shall mature or shall be

subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder not later than the

respective dates when the mOneys will be required for the purposes intended

With respect to all funds and accounts other than the Reserve Fund

Government Obligations

ii Any Notes or other obligations of any state of the United States of

America or of any local governmental unit of any such state which are rated

at the time of purchase in the highest rating category by Standard Poors

Ratings Services based on an escrow are not callable unless irrevocable

instructions have been given to the trustee of such Notes to give due notice of
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redemption and to call such Notes for redemption on the dates specified in such

instructions and are secured by cash andlor Government Obligations

iii Direct and general obligations of any state of the United States of

America to the payment of the principal of and interest on which the full faith

and credit of such state is pledged provided such obligations are rated at the time

of purchase in either of the two highest rating categories by Standard Poors

Ratings Services

iv Obligations of any state of the United States of America or any

local governmental unit of any such state which shall be rated at the time of

purchase in the highest rating category by Standard Poors Ratings Services

Certificates that evidence ownership of the right to payments of

principal or interest on the obligations described in clause provided that

such obligations shall be held in trust by Trustee or trust company or national

banking association meeting the requirements for successor Trustee under

Section 9.04 of this Indenture the owner of the investment is the real party in

interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the obligor

of the underlying Government Obligations and the underlying Government

Obligations are held in special account separate from the custodians general

assets and are not available to satisfy any claim of the custodian any person

claiming through the custodian or any person to whom the custodian may be

obligated

vi Certificates of deposit whether negotiable or normegotiable and

bankers acceptances of any Trustee in the United States whose deposits are

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or any

savings and loan association in the United States whose deposits are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor provided that such

certificate of deposit or bankers acceptance is from bank or from savings and

loan association having combined capital and surplus aggregating at least Filly

Million Dollars $50000000 provided further that such certificate of deposit or

bankers acceptance is secured by Government Obligations with market value

equal to the principal amount of such certificate of deposit or bankers acceptance

over the amount guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its

successor and provided further that such certificate of deposit or bankers

acceptance is rated at least A-l by Standard Poors Ratings Services at the

time of purchase and has maturity of not more than 365 days

vii U.S dollar denominated deposit accounts federal funds with

domestic commercial Trustees which have rating on their short term certificates

of deposit on the date of purchase of A-I or A-1 by Standard Poors and

P-l by Moodys and maturing no more than 360 days after the date of purchase

Ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating of the bank
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viii Conmiercial paper of United States corporation or finance

company other than that issued by Trustee holding companies rated at the date of

investment in the highest rating category by Standard Poors Ratings Services

ix Debentures or Notes issued by any of the following Federal

agencies Trustee for Cooperatives Federal Intermediate Credit Trustee Federal

Loan Trustee Export-Import Bank of the United States Government National

Mortgage Association or Federal Land Bank including participation certificates

issued by such Associations and all other obligations issued or in the opinion of

the Attorney General of the United States unconditionally guaranteed as to

principal and interest by any agency or person controlled or supervised by and

acting as an instrumentality of the United States of America pursuant to authority

granted by the Congress and

Securities of or other interests in no-load open-end or closed-

end management type investment company or investment trust registered under

the Investment Company Act of 1.940 15 U.S.C 80a-l to 80a-64 including

those for which the Trustee or an affiliate performs services for fee whether as

custodian transfer agent investment advisor or otherwise so long as the

portfolio
of the investment company or investment trust is limited to United

States Government Obligations and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by
United States Government Obligations and the investment company or investment

trust takes delivery of the collateral for any repurchase agreement either directly

or through an authorized custodian or ii securities of or other investments in an

investment company or investment trust which meets the foregoing requirements

and is rated at least AAAm orAAAm-G by Standard Poors Ratings Services

With respect to the Reserve Fund

Obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States Government

so long as the maturity of such obligations does not exceed three years

ii Obligations of instrumentalities or agencies of the United States or

government-sponsored enterprises so long as the maturity of such obligations

does not exceed three years

iii Obligations issued by or guaranteed by any state provided such

obligations are rated in the two highest rating categories of Rating Agency so

lon.g as the maturity of such obligations does not exceed three years

iv Commercial paper repurchase agreements guaranteed investment

contracts or other similar instruments issued by corporations that are organized

and operating within the United States having assets in excess of $500 million and

having short-term rating in the highest rating category of Rating Agency and

long-term ratin.g in one of the two highest rating categories
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Money market funds that invest solely in United States

Government securities or in the United States agency securities from issuers

under categories through iv of this section and

vi Certificates of deposit with no more than $100000 purchased

from single financial institution that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation including certificates of deposit acquired through the

Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service that meet these criteria

Ratings of Eligible Investments referred to herein shall be determined at the time of

purchase of such Eligible Investments and without regard to ratings subcategories The Trustee

shall have no responsibility to monitor the ratings of Eligible Investments after the initial

purchase of such Eligible Investments

Equipment shall have the meanin.g given to that term in the Code

Event of Default shall mean any default by the Company in the performance of its

obligations under the Notes or this Indenture

Fiscal Year means the Companys fiscal year which is the period commencing on the

first day of January and ending on the last day of December of each year or such other twelve

month period as may be designated by the CompanT as the fiscal year of the Company

Fixtures shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

General intangibles shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Goods shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Government Obligations means direct obligations of the United States of

America including obligations issued or held in book-entry form obligations and timely

payment of and interest on which are fully guaranteed by the United States of America

certificates which evidence ownership of the right to the payment of the principal of and interest

on obligations described in clauses and provided that such obligations are held in the

custody of bank or trust company satisfactory to the Trustee in
special account separate from

the general assets of such custodian and municipal obligations the timely payment of the

principal and interest on which is fully provided for by the deposit iii trust or escrow of cash or

obligations described in clause or provided such obligations are not subject to call by

the obligor for redemption prior to maturity have been called for redemption prior to maturity

or if subject to call by the obligor for redemption prior to maturity such right to call the

obligation for redemption prior to maturity has been waived

Indenture means this Trust Indenture as amended or supplemented from time to time

as permitted hereby

Instrument shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code
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Interest Payment Bate means each January and July commencing January

2014

Inventory shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Investment Income means the earnings and profits derived from the investment of

moneys pursuant to this Indenture

Investment Property shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Issue Date means ___________ 2013 the date the Notes are issued

Letter-of-Credit Rights shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Letter of Representations means the blanket agreement of the Company to comply

with the operational arrangements of The Depository Trust Company and any similar agreements

with respect to successor Depository

Lien shall mean any mortgage deed of trust pledge lien security interest charge or

other encumbrance or security arrangement of any nature including but not limited to any

conditional sale or title retention arrangement and any assigmnent deposit arrangement or lease

intended as or having the effect of security for any obligations of any Person

Material Adverse Effect shall mean material adverse effect on the business

operations condition financial or otherwise or prospects of the Company the ability of the

Company to perform any of its payment or other obligations under this Indenture the legality

validity or enforceability of the obligations of the Company under this Indenture or the ability

of the Trustee to exercise its rights and remedies with respect to or otherwise realize upon the

Collateral

Noteholder or HOlder means the Registered Owner or Beneficial Owner of any

Note

Note or Notes means the 2013 Secured Notes authorized pursuant to this Indenture

Note Fund means the fund created by Section 6.01 of this Indenture

Note Payment Date means any of the dates specified in the Indenture for payment of

principal
of and interest on the Notes i.e the first day of January and July of each year with

respect to interest commencing January 2014 until the respective Notes are paid in

accordance with their terms

Note Register means the books of the Company kept by the Trustee to evidence the

registration transfer and exchange of Notes

Note Year means any twelve month period beginning January
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Offering Circular means the offering circular dated _______ 2013 and prepared by the

Company in connection with the offer and sale of the Notes

Outstanding when used with reference to the Notes at any date as of which the

amount of outstanding Notes are to be determined means all Notes which have been

authenticated and delivered by the Trustee hereunder except

Notes canceled or delivered for cancellation at or prior to such date

Notes or portions thereof for the payment or prepayment of which funds

shall have been deposited with the Trustee whether on or prior to the maturity or

prepayment date of any such Notes provided however that if such Notes are to be

redeemed prior to maturity thereof notice of such prepayment shall have been given or

arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made therefor or waiver of such

notice satisfactory in form to the Trustee shall have been filed with the Trustee

Notes in substitution for which other Notes have been authenticated and

delivered pursuant to Article II hereof and

For purposes of any consent request demand authorization direction

notice waiver or other action to be taken by the holders of specified percentage of

Outstanding Notes hereunder all Notes held by or for the account of the Company or the

Company except that for purposes of any such consent request demand authorization

direction notice waiver or action the Trustee shall be obligated to consider as not being

Outstanding only Notes of which the Trustee has actual notice to be so held

Participant or Participants means securities brokers and dealers banks trust

companies and clearing corporations which participate
in the Depository with respect to the

Notes

Person means any natural person firm partnership association limited liability

company corporation or public body

Placement Agent Agreement means the Placement Agent Agreement dated

September 2013 between the Placement Agent and the Company relating to the initial

purchase of the Notes

Prior Security Interest shall mean continuing enforceable perfected security interest

under the Code which is prior and superior to all Liens and the rights of all third parties in the

Collateral except as may be otherwise provided in the Loan Agreement

Proceeds shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Rating Agency means Moodys Investors Service Fitch Ratings and/or Standard

Poors Ratings Services or their successors and assigns according to which of such rating

agencies then rates the Notes and provided that if none of such rating agencies then rates the
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Notes the term Rating Agency shall be deemed to refer to any nationally recognized securities

rating agency

Record Date means with respect to each Interest Payment Date the Trustees close of

business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date

regardless whether such day is Business Day

Registered Owner means the person or persons in whose name or names Note is

registered on the registration books of the Company maintained by the Trustee for that purpose

in accordance with the terms of this Indenture

Reserve Fund means the fund established pursuant to Section 6.02 of this Indenture

and which shall be entitled Loudmouth Golf LLC 2013 Debt Service Reserve Fund to be

funded as set forth in this Indenture

Reserve Fund Payments means all payments required of the Company to replenish

any deficiency in the Reserve Fund

Reserve Fund Requirement means an amount equal to the least of the maximum

annual interest requirements on the Notes for the then-current or any succeeding Note Year

determined at the time of initial iSsuance of the Notes and on the first day of each Fiscal Year

thereafter while any NOtes are Outstanding The Reserve Fund Requirement for the Reserve

Fund may be satisfied by delivery to the Trustee of Reserve Fund Security Instrument

Reserve Fund Security Instrument means letter credit line of credit policy of

insurance surety Note or similar instrument which will provide for the payment of all or part of

the amounts required to be disbursed from the Reserve Fund provided that the Reserve Fund

Security Instrument shall not result in reduction of any rating on the Notes

Revenue Account means the account by that name established within the Note Fund

pursuant to Section 6.01 of this indenture

Indenture shall mean this Indenture and all documents or annexes attached hereto or

referred to herein as any or all of the foregoing may be supplemented or amended from time to

time

Notes means the $5000000 Loudmouth Golf LLC 2013 Secured Ntes

Supporting Obligations shall have the meaning given to that term in the Code

Trustee means U.S Bank National Association national banking association acting

in its capacity as the trustee under this Indenture and any permitted successor trustee under

Article IX of this Indenture

Placement Agent means Lake Forest Securities LLC
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ARTICLE II

THE NOTES

Section 2.01 Authorized Amount of Notes

No Notes may be issued under the provisions of this Indenture except in accordance with

this Article The total principal amount of Notes that may be issued and outstanding hereunder is

expressly limited to $5000000

Section 2.02 Issuance of Notes The Notes shall be designated the Loudmouth

Golf LLC 2013 Secured Notes shall be dated the Issue Date shall bear interest from the

Issue Date at the rate provided in Exhibit hereto until the Company obligation with respect to

payment of the principal is discharged computed on 360-day year of twelve 30-day months

and shall mature at the time and in the principal amount provided in Exhibit hereto

The Notes shall be issued as registered Notes without coupons and shall be issued in

Authorized Denominations The Notes shall be numbered consecutively from upwards bearing

numbers not then contemporaneously outstanding in order of issuance according to the records

of the Trustee

The principal of and the redemption premium if any and the interest on the Notes shall

be payable in lawful money of the United States of America The principal of and redemption

premium if any on the Notes shall be payable at the principal corporate trust office or other

designated office of the Trustee The interest on the Notes shall be paid by check or draft of the

Trustee mailed to the Persons in whose names the Notes are registered on the Note Register at

the close of business on the Record Date next preceding each Interest Payment Date provided

however any registered Holder of Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $1000000 or

more as of the close of business on the Record Date preceding any Interest Payment Date may

by prior written instructions filed with the Trustee on or before the second Business Day

preceding such Record Date which instructions shall remain in effect until revoked by

subsequent wTitten instructions instruct that interest payments for any period be made by wire

transfer to any Trustee located in the continental United States

If any payment of interest or principal or redemption premium on the Notes are due on

date not Business Day payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the

same force and effect as if made on the date which is fixed for such payment and no interest

shall accrue on such amount for the period after such due date

THE PRO\TISIONS OF THE NOTES SHALL CONTROL TO THE EXTENT OF ANY
CONFLICT WITH THE PROVISIONS HEREOF

Section 2.03 Execution The Notes shall be executed on behalf of the Company with

the manual or facsimile signature of one of its authorized officers All authorized facsimile
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signatures shall have the same force and effect as if manually signed In case any official of the

Company whose signature or facsimile signature shall appear on the Notes shall cease to be such

official before the delivery of such Notes such signature or facsimile signature shall nevertheless

be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such official had remained in office until

delivery The Notes may be signed on behalf of the Company by such persons who at the time

of the execution of such Notes are duly authorized or hold the appropriate office of the

Company although on the date of the Notes such persons were not so authorized or did not hold

such offices

Section 2.04 Certificate of Authentication No Notes shall be secured hereby or

entitled to the benefit hereof or shall be or become valid or obligatory for any purpose unless

there shall be endorsed thereoii certificate of authentication substantially in the form of the

Note as set forth in the attached Exhibit executed by an authorized officer of the Trustee and

such certificate on any Note issued by the Company shall be conclusive evidence and the only

competent evidence that it has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder

Section 2.05 Form of Notes The Notes the Trustees certificate of authentication and

the form of assignment shall be in substantially the fonn attached as Exhibit with such changes

are may be necessary or appropriate to conform to any applicable rules and regulations of any

governmental authority or of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed or any

usage or requirement of law or practice with respect thereto

Section 2.06 Delivery of Notes Upon the execution and delivery hereof the Company

shall execute the Notes and deliver them to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate the

Notes and deliver them to such purchaser or purchasers as shall be directed by the Company as

hereinafter in this Section provided

Prior to or simultaneously with the authentication and delivery of the Notes by the

Trustee there shall be filed with or delivered to the Trustee the following

copy certified by an authorized officer of the Company of all

resolutions adopted and proceedings had by the Company authorizing the issuance and delivery

of the Notes

An original executed counterpart of this Indenture

Closing certificates of the Company in form and substance satisfactory to

the Placement Agent

An opinion of Counsel for the Company addressed to the Trustee and the

Placement Agent in the form included with the Offering Circular

request and authorization to the Trustee on behalf of the Company and

signed by an authorized officer of the Company directing the Trustee to authenticate and deliver

the Notes in such specified denominations as permitted herein to the Placement Agent upon
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payment to the Trustee but for the account of the Company of the aggregate principal amount of

the Notes plus accrued interest if any

Evidence satisfactory to the Trustee that the Company has delivered an

executed Letter of Representations to the Depository

Evidence satisfactory to the Trustee that there has been paid into the

Reserve Fund any amounts required by this Indenture and

Such other documents opinions of Counsel and certificates as the Trustee

may require or as may be required by the Placement Agent Agreement

Upon receipt of the foregoing the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver the Notes as

provided above

Section 2.07 Mutilated Lost Stolen or Destroyed Notes If any Note is mutilated

lost stolen or destroyed the Company may execute and the Trustee may authenticate and deliver

new Note of the same maturity interest rate principal amount and tenor in lieu of and in

substitution for the Note mutilated lost stolen or destroyed provided that in the case of any

mutilated Note such mutilated Note shall first be surrendered to the Trustee and in the case of

any lost stolen or destroyed Note there shall be first furnished to the Company and the Trustee

evidence satisfactory to each of them of the ownership of such Note and of such loss theft or

destruction together with indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee and the Company and

compliance with such other reasonable requirements as the Company and Trustee may prescribe

If any such Note shall have matured or redemption date pertaining thereto shall have passed

instead of issuing new Note the Company may pay the same without surrender thereof The

Company and the Trustee may charge the Holder of such Note with their reasonable fees and

expenses in this connection

Section 2.08 Exchangeability and Transfer of Notes Persons Treated as Owners

The Company shall cause the Note Register to be kept by the Trustee which is hereby

constituted and appointed the Note registrar
for the Notes

Any Holder of Note in person or by his duly authorized attorney may transfer title to

his Note on the Note Register upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of

the Trustee together with wriften instrument of transfer in substantially the form of

assignment attached to the Note executed by the Holder or his duly authorized attorney Upon

surrender for registration of transfer of any Note the Company shall execute and the Trustee

shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees new Note or Notes of

the same aggregate principal
amount and tenor as the Note surrendered and of any Authorized

Denomination

Notes may be exchanged upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office

of the Trustee with written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee executed by The

Noteholder or his attorney duly authorized in writing for an equal aggregate principal amount of
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Notes of the same aggregate principal amount and tenor as the Notes being exchanged and of any

Authorized Denomination The Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver Notes which the Noteholder making the exchange is entitled to receive bearing numbers

not contemporaneously then outstanding

Such registrations of transfers or exchanges of Notes shall be without charge to the

holders of such Notes but any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with

respect to the same shall be paid by the Holder of the Note requesting such registration of

transfer or exchange as condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege Any service

charge made by the Trustee for any such registration transfer or exchange shall be paid by the

Company

The Trustee shall not register any transfer of any Note or portion thereof afier notice

calling such Note or portion thereof for redemption or partial redemption has been given unless

the Holder delivers to the Trustee written statement acknowledging that such Note has been

called for redemption and the date of such redemption

The Person in whose name any Note is registered on the Note Register shall be deemed

and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes except that payment of or on account

of either principal premium if any or interest shall be made only to or upon the order of the

Holder of record as of the Record Date or its duly authorized attorney but such registration may

be changed as hereinabove provided All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy

and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid

So long as the Notes are held in book-entry form the Company shall execute and the

Trustee shall authenticate Note to be held by the Depository which shall be denominated in

an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of Notes to be held by the Depository

provided that unless such Note is being issued on the Issue Date the Trustee has received like

aggregate principal amount of Notes for transfer in accordance with this Section 2.08 shall

be registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee in accordance with this Section 2.08

shall he delivered by the Trustee to the Depository or pursuant to the Depositorys

instructions and shall bear legend substantially to the effect that unless the Note is

presented by an authorized representative of the Depository to the Company Or its agent for

registration of transfer exchange or payment any transfer exchange pledge or other use for

value or otherwise is wrongful

All Notes issued upon any transfer or exchange of Notes shall be valid and binding

limited obligations of the Company evidencing the same debt and entitled to the same security

and benefits under this Indenture as the Notes surrendered upon such transfer or exchange

In executing any Note upon any exchange or transfer provided for in this Section the

Company may rely conclusively on representation of the Trustee that such execution is

required

Section 2.09 Cancellation Matured Notes and Notes redeemed prior to maturity as

provided in Section 2.11 delivered to the Trustee shall be canceled The Trustee shall cremate
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or otherwise destroy canceled Notes and shall not reissue such Notes and shall deliver

certificate or other destruction to the Company If the Trustee for its own account or the

Company shall acquire any of the Notes such acquisition shall not operate as redemption or

satisfaction of the indebtedness represented by such Notes unless and until the same are

delivered to the Trustee for cancellation

Section 2.10 Ratably Secured All Notes issued hereunder are and are to be to the

extent provided in this Indenture equally and ratably secured by this Indenture without

preference priority or distinction on account of the actual time or times of the authentication or

delivery or maturity of the Notes so that subject as aforesaid all Notes at any time Outstanding

hereunder shall have the same right lien and preference under and by virtue of this Indenture and

shall all be equally and ratably secured hereby with like effect as if they had all been executed

authenticated and delivered simultaneously on the date hereof whether the same or any of

them shall actually be disposed of at such date or some future date except with respect to the

Reserve Fund

Section 2.11 Redemption of Notes

Optional Redemption The Notes are subject to optional redemption

prior to maturity at the option of the Company upon the direction of the Company all as

provided in the form of Notes set forth in Exhibit upon notice as provided in the form of

Notes

Mandatory Payment of Notes The Notes shall be subject to mandatory

payment at maturity as provided in the form of Notes set forth in Exhibit attached hereto

Purchase in Lieu of Redemption The Notes are subject to purchase in

lieu of redemption by the Company upon the direction of the Company prior to their maturity

date at any time in whole or in part if the following conditions are satisfied

The Company and the Noteholders negotiate and agree upon

purchase price that is communicated to the Trustee

ii Upon written agreement as described in above the Company

shall direct the Trustee to purchase certain Notes and will provide funds to the Trustee for

deposit in the Note Fund in the amount necessary to pay the purchase price of the selected

portion of the Notes and such amount as the Trustee may require to cover the accrued and

anticipated fees and expenses

iii The Trustee confirms that the amount provided for by the

Company pursuant to ii above is sufficient to warrant such purchase at the purchase price

agreed to by the Company and the Noteholders pursuant to above and

iv To the extent permitted by law the Company shall indemnify and

hold harmless the Trustee in form and with such security as may be satisfactory to the Trustee

from and against any and all liabilities claims or losses arising out of by virtue of or in
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connection with the tender of Notes up to the amount of the value of the Notes tendered except

in the case of negligence willful misconduct or bad faith on the part of the Trustee

Once purchased such Notes shall be delivered to the Trustee and cancelled

Section 2.12 Book-Entry-Only Registration of the Notes

Except as provided in subparagraph of this

44Sec tion2J2 the Registered Owner of all of the Notes shall be and the Notes shall be

registered in tl.e name of Cede Co Cede as nominee of the Depository Payment of

interest on any Note as applicable shall be made in accordance herewith for the account of Cede

on each Interest Payment Date at the address indicated for Cede in the Note Register

The Notes shall be issued as fully registered Notes without coupons in

Authorized Denominations in the total aggregate principal amount of the Notes Upon initial

issuance the ownership of each such Note shall bç registered on the Note Register in the name of

Cede as nominee of the Depository \Vith respect to the Notes so registered in the name of

Cede the Company the Company and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation

with respect to the accuracy of the records of the Depository Cede or any Participant or any

nominee of Beneficial Owner with respect to any beneficial ownership interest in the Notes

ii the delivery to any Participant Beneficial Owner or other person other than the Depository

of any notice with respect to the Notes including any notice of redemption or iii the payment

to any Participant Beneficial Owner or other person other than Cede as nominee of the

Depository of any amount with respect to the principal or redemption price of or interest on the

Notes The Company the Company and the Trustee may treat and deem Cede as nominee of

the Depository as the absolute owner of each Note for all purposes whatsoever including but

not limited to payment of the principal or redemption price of and interest on each such

Note ii giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Notes and iii

registering transfers with respect to such Notes The Trustee shall pay the principal or

redemption price of and interest on all Notes only to or upon the order of Cede and all such

payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Companys obligations

with respect to such principal redemption price and interest to the extent of the sum or sums so

paid So long as the Notes are book-entry-only no person other than the Depository shall

receive Note evidencing the obligation of the Company to make payments of principal of and

interest on the Notes pursuant to this Indenture Upon delivery by the Depository to the Trustee

of written notice to the effect that the Depository has determined to substitute new nominee in

place of Cede and subject to the transfer provisions of this Indenture the word Cede herein

shall refer to such new nominee of the Depository provided that notwithstanding any provision

of this Indenture to the contrary until the termination of the book-entry-only system the Notes

may be transferred in whole but not in part only to nominee of the Depository or by

nominee of the Depository to the Depository or any nominee thereof

The Depository may determine to discontinue providing its

services with respect to the Notes at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Company or the

Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law
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The Company at the sole discretion and direction of the Company

and without the consent of any other person may terminate the services of the Depository with

respect to the Notes if the Company determines that the continuation of the system of book-

entry-only transfer through the Depository is not in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of

the Notes or is burdensome to the Company

ii Upon the termination of the services of the Depository with respect

to the Notes pursuant to subsection ci or ii hereof the Notes shall no longer be restricted to

being registered on the Note Register in the name of Cede as nominee of the Depository In such

event the Company shall issue and the Trustee shall transfer and exchange Note certificates of

like principal amount in Authorized Denominations to the Participants or the identifiable

Beneficial Owners as identified by the Depository or the Participants in replacement of such

Beneficial Owners beneficial interests in the Notes Notwithstanding the preceding sentence if

the Company designates successor Depository the Company shall issue and the Trustee shall

transfer and exchange Note certificate in such name as is directed by the successor Depository

in the amount of Notes then Outstanding and the Tmste shall take such other action as is

necessary so that the beneficial ownership interests of the Beneficial Owners are properly

reflected on the records of the successor Depository and its Participants In such event

references herein to Cede shall be deemed to refer to the successor Depository or its nominee

as the context requires

The Company and the Trustee may conclusively rely on certificate

of the Depository as to the identity of the Participants
in the book-entry-only system and ii

certificate of such Participants as to the identity of and the respective principal amounts of Notes

beneficially owned by the Beneficial Owners

Whenever during the term of the Notes Beneficial Ownership thereof is

determined by book entry at the Depository the requirements in this Indenture of holding

delivering or transferring Notes shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate person to

meet the requirements of the Depository as to registering or transferring the book entry to

produce the same effect

Notwithstanding anything in this Indenture to the contrary the Company

and the Trustee.hereby agree as follows with respect to the Notes if and to the extent any Note is

registered in the name of Cede as nominee of the Depository the Trustee shall give the

Depository all special notices required by the Letter of Representations at the times in the forms

and by the means required by the Letter of Representations ii the Trustee shall make payments

to Cede at the times and by the means specified in the Letter of Representations iiiCede shall

not be required to surrender Notes which have been partially paid or prepaid to the extent

permitted by the Letter of Representations and iv the Trustee shall set special record date

and shall notif the registered owners of the Notes thereof in writing prior to soliciting any

Noteholder consent or vote such notice to be given not less than 15 calendar days prior to such

record date any Note transferred by registered owner subsequent to the establishment of the

special record date and prior to obtaining such consent or vote shall have attached to it copy of

the notice to Noteholders by the Trustee
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NEITHER THE ISSUER THE COMPANY NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL

HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS OR THE

BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE NOTES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OF

ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY THE DEPOSITORY OR ANY PARTICIPANT ii THE

PAYMENT BY THE DEPOSITORY TO ANY PARTICIPANT OR BY ANY PARTICIPANT

OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE

PRINC AMOUNT OR REDEMPTION PRICE OF OR INTEREST ON THE NOTES iii

THE DELIVERY OF ANY NOTICE BY THE DEPOSITORY TO ANY PARTICIPANT OR

BY ANY PARTICIPANT TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER THAT IS REQUIRED OR

PERMITTED TO BE GIVEN TO NOTEHOLDERS UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS

INDENTURE iv THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE

PAYMENT iN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE NOTES OR

ANY OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY THE DEPOSITORY AS OWNER OF THE NOTES

Section 2.13 CUSIP Numbers All payments of principal premium and interest

whether by check or draft or wire transfer shall be accompanied by the appropriate CUSIP

number identification with appropriate dollar amounts for each CUSIP number

ARTICLE III

SECURITY COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS OF COMPANY

Section 3.01 Security Interest As security for the full and timely payment of the

Notes in accordance with the terms of this Indenture and th.e full and timely payment and

performance of the obligations of the Company under this Indenture the Company grants to the

Trustee in trust for the benefit of the Noteholders security interest under the Code in and to

such of the Collateral as is now owned or acquired after the date of this Indenture by the

Company and agrees that upon filing of all applicable UCC-l financing statements with the

appropriate offices based on the infonnation set forth in Exhibits and CT to this

Indenture the Trustee shall have perfected interest in and to such Collateral to the extent that

such security interest can be perfected by filing under the Code The Collateral is intended to be

all personal property of the Company whether or not within the scope of the Code

Section 3.02 Payment of Notes and Performance of Covenants The Company shall

promptly pay the principal of redemption premium if any and interest on the Notes at the place

on the dates and in the manner provided in the Notes The Company shall promptly perform and

observe all covenants undertakings and obligations set forth herein or the Notes on its part to be

performed or observed The Company agrees that the Ti-ustee in its name or in the name of the

Noteholder may enforce against the Company or any Person any rights of the Trustee or the

Noteholder under or arising from the Notes or this Indenture whether or not the Company is in

default hereunder or under the Notes The Company shall fully cooperate with the Trustee in the

enforcement by the Trustee of any such rights

Section 3.03 Company The Company represents and warrants that it is duly

authorized to issue the Notes and to execute deliver and perform the terms of this Indenture

all action on its part for the issuance of the Notes and this Indenture have been duly taken the
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Notes upon issuance and authentication and this Indenture upon delivery shall be valid and

enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms except as enforceability may be

limited by bankruptcy insolvency or other similar laws affecting creditors rights and by general

principles of equity except as described on Exhibit it has not heretofore conveyed

assigned pledged granted security interest in or otherwise disposed of the Collateral it has

no knowledge of any right of set-off defense or counterclaim to payment or performance of the

terms or conditions of this Indenture and the execution delivery and performance of this

Indenture are not in contravention of law or any agreement instrument indenture or other

undertaking to which it is party or by which it is bound

Section 3.04 No Litigation The Company represents and warrants that no

litigation or administrative action of any nature has been served upon the Company for the

purpose of restraining or enjoining the issuance or delivery of the Notes or the execution and

delivery of this Indenture or in any manner questioning the proceedings or authority under which

they have occurred or affecting their validity or its existence or authority of its present officers

no authority or proceeding for the issuance of the Notes or for the payment or security thereof

has been repealed revoked or rescinded no petition seeking to initiate any resolution or other

measure affecting the same or the proceedings therefore has been filed and to the best of the

knowledge of the officers of the Company executing this Indenture none of the foregoing

actions is threatened

Section 3.05 Further Assurances The Company covenants that it will cooperate to

the extent necessary with the Noteholder and the Trustee in defenses of the Collateral against the

claims and demands of all Persons and will do execute acknowledge and deliver or cause to be

done such indentures supplemental hereto and such further acts instruments and transfers as the

Trustee may reasonably require for the better pledging of the Collateral

Section 3.06 No Other Encumbrances The Company covenants that except as

otherwise provided herein it will not sell convey mortgage encumber or otherwise dispose of

any portion of the Collateral

Section 3.07 No Personal Liability No director member officer or employee of the

Company including any person executing this Indenture or the Notes shall be liable personally

on the Notes or subject to any personal liability for any reason relating to the issuance sale or

repayment of the Notes

Section 3.08 Rights and Remedies of Secured Party In addition to all rights and

remedies given to the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture the Trustee shall have all of the rights

and remedies of secured party under the Code whether or not the Code applies to the

Collateral

Section 309 Provisions Applicable to the Company and the Collateral The parties

agree that the following provisions shall be applicable to the Company and the Collateral

The Company covenants and agrees that at all times during the term of

this Indenture it shall keep accurate and complete books and records concerning the Collateral
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that is now owned or acquired after the date of this Indenture by the Company in accordance

with GAAP at the locations set forth on Exhibit attached hereto and made part hereof and

at no other location without complying with the requirements set forth in Section 3.09j of this

Indenture

Upon reasonable advance notice the Trustee or its representatives shall

have the right at all times during regular business hours of the Company or at any time if an

Event of Default shall have occurred and shall be continuing to examine and inspect the

Collateral and to review the books and records of the Company concerning the Collateral that is

now owned or acquired after the date of this Indenture by the Company and to copy the same and

make excerpts therefrom

The Company currently maintains its place of business if the Company

has only one place of business or its chief executive office if the Company has more than one

place of business at the location set forth on Exhibit flCu attached hereto and made part hereof

and shall not move the location of its place of business or chief executive office as the case may

be without providing prior written notification to the Trustee and otherwise complying with

subsection of this Section 3.09

Except as may otherwise be provided in this Indenture without the prior

written consen.t of the Trustee the Company shall not sell lease or otherwise dispose of any

Equipment or Fixtures owned by the Company

Promptly upon request of the Trustee from time to time the Company

shall furnish the Trustee with such information and documents regarding the Collateral at such

times and in such form and detail as the Trustee may reasonably request

Promptly upon request of the Trustee from time to thne the Company

shall deliver to the Trustee without limitation all invoices and customer statements rendered

to account debtors Documents contracts Chattel Paper Electronic Chattel Paper Instruments

and other writings andlor records pertaining to the Companys contracts or the performance of

the Companys contracts evidence of the Companys Accounts and statements showing the

aging identification reconciliation and collection thereof and reports as to the Companys

Inventory and sales shipment damage or loss thereof all of the foregoing to be certified by an

authorized officer or other employee of the Company

Notwithstanding the Prior Security Interest in the Collateral granted to and

created in favor of the Trustee under this Indenture the Company shall have the right until one or

more Events of Default shall occur at its own cost and expense to enforce payment of the

Accounts the Chattel Paper and the Electronic Chattel Paper and to enforce its contract rights

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default the Trustee shall have the

right at any time in its sole discretion to give notice of the Trustees security interest to account

debtors obligated to the Company to take over and direct collection of the Accounts the Chattel

Paper and the Electronic Chattel Paper to notify such account debtors to make payment directly

to the Trustee and to enforce payment of the Accounts the Chattel Paper and the Electronic
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Chattel Paper and to enforce the Companys contract rights It is understood and agreed by the

Company that the Trustee shall have no liability whatsoever under this Indenture except for its

own gross negligence or willful misconduct

The Company represents and warrants as of the date of this Indenture that

the exact legal name the type of entity the jurisdiction of formation and tax identification

number of the Company are as set forth on Exhibit attached hereto and made part hereof

The Company covenants and agrees that it will not change its legal name its type of entity its

jurisdiction of formation or its tax identification number without providing the Trustee prior

written notice of its intention to 4o so cii providing the Trustee with such information in

connection therewith as the Trustee may reasonably request and iii taking such action

satisfactory to the Trustee as may be necessary to maintain at all times the priority of the

security interest of the Trustee in the Collateral hereunder

If the Company desires to establish new location for its place of business

or chief executive office as the case may be or to establish new names in which it may invoice

account debtors or maintain records concerning Collateral it shall first with respect to each such

new location or name

give the Trustee written notice of its intention to do so and provide

the Trustee with such information in connection therewith as the Trustee may reasonably

request and

ii take such action satisfactory to the Trustee including without

limitation all action required by Section 3.11 hereof as may be necessary to maintain at all

times the priority of the security interest of the Trustee in the Collateral hereunder

The Company represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge it

does not currently have Commercial Tort Claim as such term is defined in the Code against

any Person If the Company shall at any time acquire Commercial Tort Claim as such term is

defined in the Code the Company shall immediately notify the Trustee in writing signed by

the Company of the brief details thereof and grant to the Trustee in such writing security

interest therein and in the proceeds thereof all upon the terms of this Indenture with such

writing to he in form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee

The Company shall at any time and from time to time take such steps as

the Trustee may request to cause any bailee having possession of any of the Collateral to

provide to the Trustee written acknowledgement of the Trustees security interest in such

Collateral in form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee ii to cause the Trustee to obtain

control of any Investment Property Deposit Accounts Letter-of-Credit Rights or Electronic

Chattel Paper including but not limited to causing any issuer of letter of credit with respect to

the Letter-of-Credit Rights to consent to the Trustees security interest therein and including an

appropriate legend on Chattel Paper arising from the sale of Inventory identifying the Trustees

security interest therein and iiiotherwise to ensure the continued perfection and priority of the

Trustees security interest in any of the Collateral and of the preservation of its rights therein
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Section 3.10 Actions with Respect to Accounts The Company irrevocably makes

constitutes and appoints the Trustee and any of the Trustees designated officers employees or

agents as its true and lawful attorney in fact with power to sign its name and to take any of the

following actions in its name or in the name of the Trustee as the Trustee may determine at any

time except as expressly limited in this Section 3.10 without notice to the Company and at the

Companys expense

Verify the validity and amount of or any other matter relating to the

Collateral by mail telephone telegraph or otherwise

Notify all account debtors that the Accounts have been assigned to the

Trustee and that the Trustee has security interestin the Accounts

Direct all account debtors to make payment of all Accounts directly to the

Trustee

Take control in any manner of any cash or non-cash items of payment or

proceeds of Accounts

In any case and for any reason notify the United States Postal Service to

change the addresses for delivery of mail addressed to the Company to such address as the

Trustee may designate

In
aaiy case and for any reason receive open and dispose of all mail

addressed to the Company

Take control in any manner of any rejected returned stopped in transit or

repossessed goods relating to Accounts

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default enforce payment of and

collect any Accounts by legal proceedings or otherwise and for such purpose the Trustee may

Demand payment of any Accounts or direct any account debtors to

make payment of Accounts directly to the Trustee

ii Receive and collect all monies due or to become due to the

Company

iii Exercise all of the Companys rights and remedies with respect to

the collection of Accounts

iv Settle adjust compromise extend renew discharge or release

Accounts

Sell or assign Accounts on such terms for such amounts and at

such times as the Trustee deems advisable
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vi Prepare file and sign the Companys name on any Proof of Claim

or similar documents in any proceeding filed under federal or state bankruptcy insolvency

reorganization or other similar Law as to any account debtor

vii Prepare file and sign the Companys name on any Notice of Lien

Claim of Mechanics Lien Assigmnent Or Satisfaction of Lien or Mechanics Lien or similar

document in connection with the Collateral

viii Endorse the name of the Company upon any chattel papers

documents instruments invoices freight bills bills of lading or similar documents or

agreements relating to Accounts or goods pertaining to Accounts or upon any checks or other

medium of payment or evidence of security interest that may come into the Trustees possession

ix Sign the name of the Company to verifications of Accounts and

notices of Accounts sent by account debtors to the Company or

Take all other actions necessary or desirable to protect the

Companys interests in the Accounts

The Company ratifies and approves all acts of said attorneys and agrees that said

attorneys shall not be liable for any acts of commission or omission nor for any error of

judgment or mistake of fact or law This power being coupled with an interest is irrevocable

until the Notes are paid in full and the Company shall have performed all of its obligations under

this Indenture The Company further agrees to use its best efforts to assist the Trustee in the

collection and enforcement of the Accounts and will not hinder delay or impede the Trustee in

any manner in its collection and enforcement of the Accounts

Section 3.11 Preservation and Protection of Security Interest The Company

represents and warrantS that it has or will have upon its acquisition of such Collateral and

covenants and agrees that at all times during the term of this Indenture it will have good and

valid title to the Collateral from tim.e to time owned or acquired by it free and clear of all Liens

except those in favor of the Trustee and shall defend the Collateral against the claims and

demands of all Persons whomsoever other than the holders of any Liens so permitted The

Company covenants and agrees that it shall not without the prior written consent of the Trustee

borrow against the Collateral or any portion of the Collateral from any other Person ii grant

or create or pennit to attach or exist any Lien on of or in any of the Collateral or any portion of

the Collateral except those in favor of the Trustee iiipermit any levy or attachment to be made

against the Collateral or any portion of the Collateral or iv permit any financing statements or

such other instruments or notices with respect to security interests to be on file with respect to

any of the Collateral except financing statements or such other instruments of notice in favor of

the Trustee The Company shall faithfully preserve and protect
the Trustees security interest in

the Collateral and shall at its own cost and expense cause or assist the Trustee to cause that

security interest to be perfected arid continue perfected so long as the Notes or any portion of the

Notes are outstanding unpaid or executory For purposes of the perfection of the Trustees

security interest in the Collateral in accordance with the requirements of this Indenture the

Company authorizes the Trustee at any time and from time to time to file financing statements
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continuation statements and amendments thereto that describe the Collateral as all assets of the

Company or words of similar effect and which contain any other information required by the

Code for the sufficiency or filing office acceptance of any financing statement continuation

statement or amendment If any such financing statement continuation statement or amendment

requires the signature of the Company it may be signed by the Trustee on behalf of the

Company The Company shall from time to time at the request of the Trustee file or record or

cause to be filed or recorded such other jnstruments documents and notices including financing

statements continuation statements assignments and certificates of title as the Trustee may

reasonably deem necessary or advisable from time to time in order to perfect and continue

perfected such security interest The Company shall do all such other acts and things shall

execute and deliver all such other instruments and documents including further security

agreements control agreements pledges endorsements assignments certificates of title and

notices and shall furnish any other information as the Trustee in its discretion may reasonably

deem necessary or advisable from time to time in order to perfect and preserve the priority of

such security interest as first lien security interest in the Collateral prior to the rights of all

Persons The Company irrevocably appoints the Trustee and any of the Trustes designated

officers employees and/or agents as the attorney-in-fact of the Company to take such action as

the Trustee may reasonably deem necessary from time to time to preserve perfect and continue

perfected the Trustees security interest in the Collateral in accordance with the requirements of

this Indenture including but not limited to signing any certificates of title fmancing statements

or amendments to financing statements evidencing the Trustees security interest in the Collateral

for and on behalf of the Company The Company agrees that carbon photographic or other

reproduction of this Indenture or fmancing statement is sufficient as financing statement and

may be filed instead of the originaI The Company hereby ratifies any and all financing

statements arid amendments to financing statements evidencing the Trustees security interest in

the Collateral filed prior to the date hereof

Section 3.12 Preservation of Rights Against Third Parties Preservation of

Collateral in the Trustees Possession Until such time as the Trustee exercises its right to

effect direct collection of the Accounts the Chattel Paper and the Electronic Chattel Paper and to

effect the enforcement of the Companys contract rights the Company assumes full

responsibility
for taking any and all steps

to preserve rights in respect of the Accounts the

Chattel Paper and the Electronic Chattel Paper and its contracts against third parties The

Trustee shall be deemed to have exercised reasonable care in the custody and preservation of

such of the Collateral as may come into its possession from time to time ifthe Trustee takes such

action for that purpose as the Company shall request in writing provided that such requested

action shall not in the judgment of the Trustee impair the Trustees security interest in the

Collateral or its right in or the value of the Collateral and provided further that the Trustee

receives such written request in sufficient time to permit the Trustee to take the requested action
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Section 3.13

ARTICLE IV

AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

The Company covenants and agrees with the Trustee as follows

Section 4.01 Reporting and Information Requirements

The Company shall deliver or shall cause to be delivered the following documents to

the Trustee and the Placement Agent in such detail as reasonably requested by the Placement Agent

Aimual Reports of the Company As soon as practicable and in any event

within one hundred twenty 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of the Company the

Company shall furnish internal statements of income retained earnings and cash flow of the

Company for such fiscal year and balance sheet of the Company as of the close of such fiscal

year and notes to each all in reasonable detail setting forth in comparative form the

corresponding figures for the preceding fiscal year prepared in accordance with GAAP applied

on basis consistent with that of the preceding fiscal year

Monthly Reports of the Company As soon as practicable and in any event

within forty-five 45 days after the close of each month the Company will furnish to the Trustee

and the Placement Agent unaudited statements of income and retained earnings of the Company

for such month and for the portion of the fiscal year to the end of such month and an unaudited

balance sheet of the Company as of the close of such month all in reasonable detail All such

income statements and balance sheets shall be prepared by or for the Company and certified by

the Company as presenting fairly in all material respects the financial position of the Company as

of the end of such period and the results of its operations for such periods in conformity with

GAAP in all material respects applied in manner consistent with that of the most recent

financial statements of the Company furnished to the Placement Agent subject to the absence of

notes and to customary year-end adjustments Along with each monthly financial statement the

Company will also provide detailed inventory repOtt by location and an accounts receivable

aging report each in form customarily prepared by the Company in the ordinary course of

business

Federal Tax Returns of the Company As soon as practical and in any

event within ten 10 days after the date such returns are due to be filed the Company shall

furnish to the Trustee and the Placement Agent the federal tax returns of the Company including

all schedules and attachments flied with such returns

Notice of Event of Default Promptly upon becoming aware of any Event

of Default the Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Event of Default together with

written statement signed on behalf of the Company setting forth the details of the Event of

Default and any action taken or contemplated to be taken by the Company with respect thereto

Section 4.02 Preservation of Existence and Franchises
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The Company shall maintain its existence as limited liability company and the

rights associated therewith in full force and effect in the State of Delaware The Company shall not

change its jurisdiction
of formation and the Company will qualify and remain qualified as foreign

corporation in each jurisdiction
in which the ownership of its property or the nature of its activity or

both makes such qualification necessary

Section 4.03 Maintenance of Insurance

The Company shall maintain with financially sound and reputable insurers

insurance with respect to its properties and businesses including but not limited to the Collateral

against such liabilities casualties and contingencies and of such types and in such amounts as are

reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee and as is customary in the case of Persons engaged in the

same or similar business or having similar properties in the same geographic areas The Company

agrees to provide the Trustee with 10 days advance notice of the cancellation modification or

termination of any such policy of insurance

Section 4.04 Maintenance of Properties

The Company shall maintain or cause to be maintained in good repair working

order and condition all assets of the Company and shall make or cause to be made all needful and

proper repairs renewals replacements and improvements thereto so that the business carried on in

connection therewith may be properly and advantageously conducted at all times

Section 4.05 Payment of Liabilities

The Company shall pay or discharge

on or prior to the date on which penalties attach all taxes assessments and

other governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or any of its properties or income sales or

franchises

on or prior to the date when due all lawful claims of materialmen

mechanics carriers warehousemen landlords and other like Persons which if unpaid might

reu1t in the creation of Lien upon any of its properties

on or prior to the date when due all other lawful claims which if unpaid

might result in the creation of Lien upon any of its properties

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 4.05 the Company shall have

the right upon notice to the Trustee to contest any item described in this Section 4.05 by

appropriate legal proceedings including with respect to the validity or application of any Law
or appropriate negotiations with any Person claiming right to payment from the Company as

applicable in each case diligently conducted in good faith without cost or expense to the Trustee

and without subjecting the Trustee to any criminal or civil liability provided however that if

any Lien against the Collateral except Liens permitted by Section 5.01 hereof would or

reasonably would be expected to be incurred by reason of any delay occasioned by such contest

the Company nevertheless may contest as aforesaid and delay as aforesaid provided the
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Company furnish to and maintains with the Trustee security at all times reasonably

satisfactory to the Trustee against any loss or injury by reason of such contest or delay and ii

prosecute such contest with due diligence

Section 4.06 Financial Accounting Practices

The Company will make and keep books records and accounts which in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect its transactions and dispositions of its assets and maintain

system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that

transactions are executed in accordance with managements general or specific authorization

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity

with GAAP consistently applied and ii to maintain accountability for assets access to assets is

permitted only in accordance with managements general or specific authorization and the

recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and

appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences

Section 4.07 Compliance with Laws

The Company shall comply with all applicable Laws except where the failure to do

so comply would not reasonably he expected to result in Material Adverse Effect

Section 4.08 Further Assurances

The Company at its own cost and expense shall cause to be promptly and duly

taken executed acknowledged and delivered any and all such further acts documents and

assurances as the Trustee may reasonably request from time to time in order to carry out the express

intent and purposes of this Indenture more effectively and the transactions contemplated by this

Indenture and to cause the Liens granted under this Indenture to be at all times valid perfected and

enforceable against
the Company and all third parties All expenses of such filings and recordings

and re-filings and re-recordings shall be borne by the Company

Section 4.09 Financial Covenant

Commencing with the year ending December 31 2014 the Company shall maintain

ratio of EBITDA to annual interest on the Notes of at least 1.25 to

ARTICLE

NEGATIVE COVENANTS

The Company covenants to the Trustee as follows

Section 5.01 Liens
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The Company shall not at any time create incur assume or suffer to exist any Lien

on or against any of its assets or other property tangible or intangible now owned or hereafter

acquired or agree to become liable to do so except

Liens in favor of the Trustee

Liens arising from taxes assessments charges levies or claims described

in Section 4.05 of this Agreement that are not yet due

pledges or deposits under workers compensation unemployment

insurance and social security laws or in connection with or to secure the performance of bids

tenders contracts other than for the repayment of borrowed money or leases or to secure

statutory obligations surety or appeal bOnds or other pledges or deposits of like nature used in

the ordinary course of business and

any unfiled materialmens mechanics workmens and repairmens

Liens arising in the ordinary course of business in respect of obligations that are not overdue

provided that if such Lien shall be perfected it shall be discharged of record immediately by

payment bond or otherwise

Section 5.02 Distributions

So long as an Event of Defaul.t has occurred and is continuing or would result

thereby the Company shall not declare make pay or agree become or remain liable to make or

pay any distribution of any nature whether in cash property securities or otherwise on account of

or in respect of any membership interest or other equity interest of the Company or on account of

the purchase redemption retirement or acquisition of any membership interest or other equity

interest or warrants options or rights
for any such capital stock membership interest or other

equity interest of the Company provided however that this provisioli shall not apply to payments to

members of normal compensation for services rendered or for tax related distributions

Section 5.03 Self-Dealing

The Company shall not enter into or carry out any transaction including without

limitation purchasing property or services from or selling property or services to with any Affiliate

except

officers directors members managers employees and Affiliates of the

Company may render services to the Company for compensation at substantially the same or

better rates generally paid by third parties engaged in the same or similar businesses for the same

or similar services and

the Company may enter into and carry out other transactions with

Affiliates if in the ordinary course of the Companys business pursuant to the reasonable

requirements of the Companys business upon terms that are fair and reasonable and no less
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favorable to the Company than the Company would obtain in comparable arms length

transaction

ARTICLE VI

FUNDS

Section 6.01 Establishment and Use of Note Fund There is hereby created and

established with the Trustee special
fund to be designated the Loudmouth Golf LLC 2013

Note Fund the Note Fund Within the Note Fund there shall be established separate trust

accounts to be designated the Revenue Account and the Subscription Account provided

however no such account is required to be established and opened by the Trustee until such time

as the account is needed under the provisions of this Jndenthre There shall be deposited in the

Subscription Account of the Note Fund all proceeds from the issuance of the Notes Any other

amounts received for deposit in the Note Fund shall be deposited in the Revenue Account of the

Note Fund and shall not be commingled with any other moneys held by the Trustee

Amounts on deposit in the Subscription Account of the Note Fund shall be paid out and

applied as follows to make deposits to the Note Fund to pay capitalized interest and

Reserve Fund in an amount equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement ii to pay all costs

associated with the issuance of the Notes including amounts due to the Placement Agent iii to

pay all amounts required to satisfy all prior Liens on the Collateral admtslanding thirL party

çhas set forth on Exhibit and iv to distribute any remaining funds to the Company for the

purposes generally described in the Offering Circular

There shall be deposited in the Revenue Account of the Note Fund any proceeds of

the Notes required to be deposited in the Note Fund to pay capitalized interest if any on the

Notes Investment Income and all other moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to this

Indenture following distribution of the Subscription Account if any

The Company hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee and the Trustee hereby agrees

to withdraw sufflcient funds from the Note Fund to pay the principal of premium if any and

interest on the Notes as the same become due and payable

The Company and Trustee shall at the direction of the Company use such moneys to

redeem Notes in the manner and amount as directed subject to the provisions for redemption of

Notes in this Indenture

In the event any Notes shall not be presented for payment when the principal thereof

becomes due either at maturity or otherwise or at the date fixed for redemption thereof if funds

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such Notes shall have been made available to the

Trustee for the benefit of the Noteholders all liability of the Company and any and all liability of

the Company to the Noteholders respecting payment of such Notes shall forthwith cease and be

completely discharged and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold such fimds

without liability for interest thereon for the benefi.t of the Noteholders who shall thereafter be
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restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim under the Indenture or with respect to the

Notes or the interest thereon

Section 6.02 Establishment Use and Maintenance of Reserve Fund The Reserve

Fund shall be established with the Trustee Any amounts received for deposit in the Reserve

Fund shall not be commingled with any other moneys held by the Trustee

If at any time there are not sufficient funds in the Note Fund for the payment of principal

of premium if any and interest on the Notes as the same become due the Trustee shall

withdraw from the Reserve Fund and deposit in the Note Fund sufficient moneys which when

added to the moneys on deposit in the Note Fund will be sufficient to meet the payment of

principal premium if any and interest then due on the Notes

From time to time as the Trustee determines is necessary and in any event on the first

Business Day of each January and July while amounts are required to be on deposit in the

Reserve Fund the Trustee shall determine the market value including accrued but unpaid

interest of all Eligible Investments on deposit in the Reserve Fund together with any cash then

held in the Reserve Fund and any amounts that are available to be drawn under any letter of

credit surety bond or insurance policy then on deposit in the Reserve Fund If the Trustee

determines that the aggregate value of such amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund is less than

the Reserve Fund Requirement the Trustee shall immediately notify the Company of the amount

necessary to restore the Reserve Fund to the Reserve Fund Requirement and the Company shall

pay such amount to the Trustee for deposit into the Reserve Fund on or before the next Interest

Payment Date following such notification

Earnings realized from Eligible Investments in the Reserve Fund shall be released to the

Company free and clear of the lien of this Indenture on the business day before each January

and July provided that the aggregate amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is at least equal to

the Reserve Fund Requirement and on the business day following payment of all of the Notes in

accordance with Article VII hereof

Section 6.03 Account Statements The Trustee shall keep and maintain adequate

account statements including receipts and statements of disbursements deposits and

investments pertaining to the Subscription Fund the Note Fund and Reserve Fund The Trustee

shall provide monthly transaction and asset statements pertaining to such Funds to the Company

Although the Company recognizes that it may obtain broker confirmation or written statement

containing comparable information at no additional cost the Company hereby agrees that

conHrrnations of Eligible Investments are not required to be issued by the Trustee for each month

in which monthly statement is rendered No statement need be rendered for any fund or

account if no activity occurred in such fund or account during such month

Section 6.04 Investment of Fund Moneys Moneys held as part of the Note Fund shall

be invested and reinvested at the written direction of the Company in Eligible Investments

Moneys held in the Reserve Fund shall be invested and reinvested at the written direction of the

Company in Eligible Investments The Trustee may conclusively rely upon such insfructions as

to the suitability of the directed investments The Trustee may make any and all such
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investments through its own investment department or that of its affiliates or subsidiaries and

may charge its ordinary and customary fees for such trades including cash sweep account fees

Any Eligible Investments shall be held by or under the control of the Trustee and shall be

deemed at all times part
of the fund and account which was used to purchase the same All

interest accruing thereon and any profit realized from Eligible Investments shall be credited to

the respective fund or account and any loss resulting from Eligible Investments shall be similarly

charged The Trustee is authorized to cause to be sold and reduced to cash sufficient amount of

Eligible Investments whenever the cash balance is or will be insufficient to make requested or

required disbursement from the applicable Fund The Trustee shall not be accountable for any

depreciation in the value of any Eligible Investment or for any loss resulting from such sale

Section 6.05 Repayment to the Company From the Funds Any amounts remaining

in the Note Fund after payment in full of the Notes and all other amounts required to be paid

under this Indenture shall bepaid to the Company

Section 6.06 Repayment to the Company from the Reserve Fund Any amounts

remaining in the Reserve Fund afler payment in full of the Notes and all other amounts required

to be paid under this Indenture shall be paid to the Company upon discharge of this Indenture in

accordance with ARTICLE VII below

ARTICLE VII

DISCHARGE OF LIEN

Section 7.01 Discharge of Lien and Security Interest Subject to the next paragraph

upon payment in full of the Notes the lien of this Indenture upon the Collateral shall cease

terminate and be void and thereupon the Trustee upon determining that all conditions precedent

to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with and upon payment of

the Trustees fees costs and expenses hereunder shall cancel and discharge this Indenture

and the security interests execute and deliver to the Company such instruments in writing as

shall be required to cancel and discharge this Indenture and the security interests reconvey to

the Company all amounts in the Reserve Fund and reconvey such other Collateral as applicable

to the Company and assign and deliver to the Company all amounts in the Reserve Fund and

assign and deliver to the Company so much of the Collateral as may be in its possession or

subject to its control except for moneys and Government Obligations held in the Note Fund for

the purpose of paying Notes provided however such cancellation and discharge of this

Indenture shall not terminate the powers and rights granted to the Trustee with respect to the

payment transfer and exchange of the Notes and provided further that the rights of the

Company nd the Trustee to indemnity and payment of all reasonable fees and expenses shall

survive

If payment or provision therefor has been made with respect to all the Notes the interest

of the Trustee in the Collateral shall cease and the Trustee shall terminate the security interest in

the Collateral Neither the obligations nor moneys deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this

Article VII shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than and shall be segregated and
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held in trust for the payment of the principal redemption premium if any and interest on the

Notes in accordance with the terms of this Indenture

Section 7.02 Provision for Payment of Notes Notes shall be deemed to have been

paid within the meaning of Section 7.01 if

there have been irrevocably deposited in the Note Fund either cash or

noncallable Government Obligations of such maturities and interest payment dates and bearing

such interest as will without further investment or reinvestment of either the principal amount

thereof or the interest earnings thereon such earnings to be held in trust also be sufficient for

the payment at their respective maturities or redemption dates prior to maturity of the principal

thereof and the redemption premium if any and interest to accrue thereon to such maturity or

redemption dates as the case may be

there have been paid all fees costs and expenses of the Trustee then due or

to become due or there are sufficient moneys in the Note Fund to make such payments and

if any Notes are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity the

Trustee has received in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to redeem such Notes on

such date and either evidence satisfactory to the Trustee that all redemption notices required by

this Indenture have been given or irrevocable power authorizing the Trustee to give such

redemption notices

In determining the sufficiency of the moneys and/or Government Obligations deposited

pursuant to subsection of this Section 7.02 the Trustee shall be entitled to receive at the

expense of the Company and may rely on verification report of finn of nationally recognized

independent certified public accountants

Limitations elsewhere specified herein regarding the investment of moneys held by the

Trustee in the Note Fund shall not be construed to prevent the depositing and holding in the Note

Fund of the obligations described in the preceding subparagraph for the purpose of defeasing

the lien of this Indenture as to Notes which have not yet become due and payable In addition

all moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided in this Section 7.02 may also be invested

and reinvested at the Tiften direction of the Company in Government Obligations maturing in

the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth and all income from all Government Obligations

in the hands of the Trustee pursuant to this Section 7.02 which is not required for the payment of

the Notes and interest and redemption premium if any thereon with respect to which such

moneys shall have been so deposited under this Section 7.02 shall be deposited in the Note Fund

as and when realized and collected for use and application as are other moneys deposited in the

Note Fund

Section 7.03 Discharge of this Indenture Notwithstanding the discharge and

cancellation of the lien of this Indenture upon the Collateral under Section 7.01 this Indenture

and the rights gTanted and duties imposed hereby to the extent not inconsistent with such

discharge and cancellation of the lien upon the Collateral shall nevertheless continue and subsist

after payment in full of the Notes until the Trustee shall have returned to the Company andlor the
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Company all funds held by the Trustee in the Note Fund and the Reserve Fund pursuant to

Sections 6.05 and 6.06 of this Indenture

Section 7.04 Unclaimed Moneys Any moneys deposited with the Trustee in

accordance with the terms and provisions of this Indenture or any moneys held by any paying

agent in trust for the payment of the principal of and redemption premium if any or interest on

the Notes and remaining unclaimed by the Registered Owners of the Notes for five years after

the final maturity of all Notes issued hereunder or the redemption date of all the Notes as the

case may be shall be applied by the Trustee in accordance with the Uniform Unclaimed Property

Act Act No 29 Public Acts of Michigan 1995 as amended from time to time The Company

and the Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to such moneys

ARTICLE VIII

DEFAULT PROVISIONS AND REMEDIES

Section 8.01 Events of Default Any one of the following shall constitute an Event of

Default hereunder

Default in the payment of any interest on any Note when and as the same

is due

Default in the payment of the principal of or any premium on any Note

when and as the same is due whether at the stated maturity or redemption date thereof or by

acceleration

Default in the observance or performance of any other of the covenants

agreements or conditions on the part
of the Company included in this Indenture or in the Notes

and the continuance thereof for period of thirty 30 days after the Trustee or the Holders of not

less than 51% in principal amount of the Notes gives written notice to the Company provided

however if such default is such that it cannot be cured within such 30 day period it shall not

constitute an Event of Default if the default is correctable and if corrective action is instituted

within such 30 day period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected but in no event

shall the period allowed for correction exceed one hundred twenty 120 days

Section 8.02 Events of Default and Remedies

If any one or more of the Events of Default shall occur the Trustee may

then or at any time thereafter so long as such default shall continue foreclose its Lien or

security interest in the Collateral in any way permitted by Law or upon 10 days prior written

notice to the Company sell any or all Collateral at private sale at any time or place in one or

more sales at such price or prices and upon such terms either for cash or on credit as the

Trustee in its sole discretion may elect or sell any or all Collateral at public auction either for

cash or on credit as the Trustee in its sole discretion may elect and at any such sale the

Trustee may bid for and become the purchaser of any or all such Collateral Pending any such

action the Trustee may liquidate the Collateral
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If any one or more of the Events of Default shall occur the Trustee may

then or at any time thereafter so long as such default shall continue grant extensions to or

adjust claims o1 or make compromises or settlements with debtors the Company or any other

Persons with respect to the Coflateral or any securities guarantees or insurance applying thereon

without notice to or the consent of the Company without affecting the Companys liability under

this Indenture the Loan Agreement or the other Loan Documents The Company waives notice

of acceptance of nonpayment protest or notice of protest of any Accounts Chattel Paper or

Electronic Chattel Paper or any of its contract rights and any other notices to which the Company

may be entitled

If any one or more of the Events of Default shall occur then in any such

event the Trustee shall have such additional rights and remedies in respect of the Collateral or

any portion thereof as are provided by the Code whether or not the Code applies to the affected

Collateral and such other rights and remedies in respect thereof which it may have at Law or in

equity including without limitation the right to enter any premises where Equipment Inventory

andlor Fixtures are located and take possession and control thereof without demand or notice and

without prior judicial hearing or legal proceedings which the Company expressly waives

The Trustee shall apply the Proceeds of any sale or liquidation of the

Collateral and subject to Section 4.03 any Proceeds received by the Trustee from insurance

first to the payment of the reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection

with such sale or collection including without limitation reasonable attorneys fees and legal

expenses second to the payment of the Debt whether on account of principal or interest or

otherwise as the Trustee in its sole discretion may elect and then to pay the balance if any to

the Company or as otherwise required by Law If such Proceeds are insufficient to pay the

amounts required by Law the Company shall be liable for any deficiency

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default the Company shall promptly

following demand by the Trustee assemble the Equipment Inventory and Fixtures and make

them available to the Trustee at place or places to be designated by the Trustee The right of

the Trustee under this paragraph to have the Equipment Inventory and Fixtures assembled and

made available to it is of the essence of this Indenture and the Trustee may at its election

enforce such right by an action in equity for injunctive relief or specific performance

If any one or more of the Events of Default shall occur or shall exist and

be continuing then in any event the Trustee shall have the right to use and operate under all

trade names under which the Company does business

Section 8.03 Acceleration Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder

the Trustee may and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than twentyflve

percent in aggregate principal amount of Notes then Outstanding provided that such requesting

Noteholders have offered indemnity to the Trustee to its sole satisfaction pursuant to Section

9.01 of this Indenture and that the Trustee has received no conflicting direction from the

majority of Noteholders pursuant to Section 8.03 and Section 8.04 of this Indenture or the

occurrence of an Event of Default under subsection or of Section 8.01 hereof the Trustee

shall immediately by notice in writing sent to the Company declare the principal of and any
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premium on all Notes then Outstanding if not then due and payable and the interest accrued

thereon to be due and payable immediately and upon such declaration such principal and

premium if any and interest shall become and be immediately due and payable

Inmediately following any such declaration of acceleration the Trustee shall mail notice

of such declaration by first class mail to each Noteholder at his last address appearing on the

Note Register Any defect in or failure to give such notice of such declaration shall not affect the

validity of such declaration

Section 8.04 Other Remedies Rights of Noteholders Upon the happening and

continuance of an Event of Default hereunder the Trustee may with or without taking action

under Section 8.03 hereof pursue any available remedy to enforce the performance of or

compliance with any other obligation or requirement of this Indenture or any other security

provided by the Company

Subject to Section 8.03 hereof upon the happening and continuance of an Event of

Default and if requested to do so by the holders of at least fifty-one percent 51% in aggregate

principal amount of Notes then Outstanding and the Trustee is indemnified as provided in

Section 9.01 hereof the Trustee may exercise such of the rights and powers conferred by this

Section and by Section 8.03 hereof as the Trustee being advised by Counsel shall deem most

effective to enforce and protect the interests of the Noteholders

No remedy by the terms of this Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to

the Noteholders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy but each and every such

remedy shall be cumulative and shall .be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee or

to the Noteholders hereunder or now or hereafter existing

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default or Event

of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be waiver of any such

default or Event of Default or acquiescence therein and every such right and power may be

exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient

No waiver of any default or Event of Default hereunder whether by the Trustee or by the

Noteholders shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or Event of Default or shall

impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary before taking any action

under this Section 8.04 the Trustee may require that satisfactory indemnity bond or insurance

be furnished to it for the payment or reimbursement of all expenses to which it may be put and to

protect it against all liability resulting from any claims judgments demands damages losses

penalties fmes fees costs liabilities including strict liability and expenses which may result

from such action
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Upon the happening and continuance of an Event of Default and ifrequested to do so by

the holders of at least fifty-one percent 51% in aggregate principal amount of Notes then

Outstanding and provided that the Trustee is indemnified as provided in Section 9.01 hereof the

Trustee shall demand that the Company promptly employ management consultant The

management consultant shall review and analyze the financial statements and condition of the

Company and inspect the Facilities its operation and administration and submit written reports

to the Placement Agent and the Trustee and make such recommendations as to the operation and

administration of the Company as such management consultant deems appropriate The

Company agrees to consider any recommendations by the management consultant and to the

fullest extent practicable and allowed by law and consistent with the Companys covenants under

this indenture to adopt and carry out such recommendations

Section 8.05 Right of Noteholders to Direct Proceedings If an Event of Default

occurs of which the Trustee is by reason of Section 9.01j deemed to have notice then the

Trustee within forty-five days after the occurrence thereof unless such Event of Default shall

have been cured or waived shall give notice of such Event of Default to the Registered Owners

of the Outstanding Notes at the address then shown on the Note Register The Holders of no less

than 51% of the principal amount of Notes then Outstanding may by written instrument filed

with the Trustee notify the Trustee and the Company of the existence of an Event of Default

upon which notice the Trustee shall be conclusively presumed to have such notice request

the Trustee to give written notice of an Event of Default to the Company or give such notice

themselves under the provisions of Section 8.01 as to any Event of Default request the

Trustee to exercise any of the remedies under Section 8.03 upon which request subject to right

of indemnification the Trustee shall exercise such remedy as to any Event of Default direct

the method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with the exercise

of any remedy request the waiver of any Event of Default and rescission of the declaration of

maturity of principal or termination of any proceedings in connection with the exercise of any

remedies provided however that there shall be no such waiver rescission or termination unless

all arrears of principal and interest on the Notes together with interest thereon to the extent

permitted by law at the applicable rate of interest borne by the Notes and all fees and expenses

of the Trustee including the reasonable fees and expenses of its counsel in connection with such

Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for and request the Trustee to intervene in

any judicial proceeding to which the Company is party which may have substantial bearing on

the interests of holders of the Notes and subject to right of indemnification the Trustee shall so

intervene subject to the approval of court exercising jurisdiction

Without limitation of the foregoing any such proceedings referenced in clause above

may include forbearance or non-action on the part of the Trustee the sale of the property covered

by this Indenture free of the lien thereof for an amount less than the amounts due with respect to

the Notes and the cancellation of the Notes in full on behalf of the holders thereof and the

waiver or release of claims or the granting of covenant not to sue

The Trustee is hereby authorized and directed on behalf of the holders of the Notes to

file proof or proofs of claim in any bankruptcy receivership or other insolvency proceeding

involving the Company
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In the event the holders of not less than 51% of the principal amount of Notes then

Outstanding shall direct the Trustee to exercise one or more of the foregoing rights or one or

more of the remedies upon an Event of Default herein authorized and shall reasonably indenmify

the Trustee for all costs and expenses in the exercise of said rights and remedies as provided in

Section 9.01h and the Trustee shall fail to take such designated action as directed within 30

days after receiving written notice of the same and being so indemnified such Noteholders shall

have the right to exercise any and all of the rights and remedies herein authorized in the same

manner as if the same had been instituted by the Tmstee

Noteholders shall have the right to bring individual action only to enforce payment of the

principal of and interest on the Notes of the respective holders thereof at the respective due dates

thereof but only if the Trustee has not taken similar action

No Noteholder shall have the right to institute any proceeding for the enforcement of this

Indenture unless such Noteholder has given the Trustee and the Company written notice of an

Event of Default the holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then

Outstanding shall have requested the Trustee in writing to institute such proceeding the Trustee

shall have been afforded reasonable opportunity to exercise its powers or to institute such

proceeding and there shall have been offered to the Trustee indemnity and the Trustee shall have

thereafter failed or refused to exercise such powers or to institute such proceeding within

reasonable time

Section 8.06 Discontinuance of Default Proceedings In case the Trustee has

proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment of receiver or

otherwise and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or

have been determined adversely then and in every such case the Company and the Trustee shall

be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder and all rights remedies and powers of

the Trustee shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken subject to the limits of any

adverse determination

Section 8.07 Waiver With the written consent of the holders of not less than 51% of

the principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding the Trustee may waive any Event of Default

hereunder and its consequences and rescind any declaration of maturity of principal provided

there shall have been deposited with the Trustee sum sufficient to pay all principal on the Notes

matured prior to the occurrence of such Event of Default and all matured installments of interest

if any upon all the Notes with interest on such overdue installments of principal at the rate

borne by the respective Notes and the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee including the

reasonable fees and expenses of its counsel and any and all other Events of Default known to the

Trustee other than in the payment of principal of and interest on the Notes due and payable

solely by reason of such declaration shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of

the Trustee or provision deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefor or

otherwise waived by such Noteholders In case of any such waiver or rescission the Company
the Company the Trustee and the Noteholders shall be restored to their former positions and

rights hereunder respectively but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to or affect any

subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon
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No delay or omission to exercise any power accruing upon Event of Default shaH impair

any such right or power or shall be construed to be waiver of any such Event of Default or

acquiescence therein and every such right
and power may be exercised from time to time and as

often as may be deemed expedient

Section 8.08 Application of Moneys All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to

any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article VIII shall be deposited in the

Note Fund After payment of the cost and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection

of such moneys and of the expenses liabilities and advances incurred or made by the Trustee

and the creation of reserve for anticipated fees costs and expenses including reasonable

attorneys fees and all other current outstanding fees and expenses of the Trustee such moneys

shall be applied in the order set forth below

Unless the principal on all Notes shall have become or been declared due

and payable all such money shall be applied

To the payment of all installments of interest then due on the Notes in

order of maturity of such installments of interest and if the amount available shall not be

sufficient to pay in full any particular installment then to the ratable payment of the amounts due

on such installment

Second To the payment of the unpaid principal of any of the Notes which shall

have become due other than Notes called for redemption for the payment of which moneys are

held pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture in the order of their due dates with interest on

such Notes from the respective dates upon which they became due at the rate borne by the

Notes to the extent permitted by law and if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay

in full Notes due on any particular date together with such interest then to the ratable payment

of the amounts due on such date and

Third To the payment of any Note servicing costs as the Trustee may be

directed in writing by an authorized officer of the Company

ii If principal of all the Notes shall have become or been declared due and

payable all such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal and interest then due

and unpaid upon the Notes without preference or priority as between principal or interest

ratably according to amounts due respectively for principal and interest to the persons entitled

thereto

iii If the principal on all Notes shall have been declared due and payable and

if such declaration shall thereafter have been rescinded under this Article then subject to

paragraph iiof this Section in the event that the principal of all the Notes shall later become or

be declared due and payable the moneys shall be applied in accordance with paragraph of this

Section

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to this Section such moneys shall be

applied at such times and from time to time as the Trustee shall determine having due regard to
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the amount of such moneys available for application the likelihood of additional moneys

becoming available for such application in the future and potential expenses relating to the

exercise of any remedy or right conferred on the trustee by this Indenture Whenever the Trustee

shall apply such moneys it shall fix the date which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless it

shall deem another date more suitable upon which such application is to be made and upon such

date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on such dates shall cease to accrue

ARTICLE IX

THE TRUSTEE

Section 9.01 Appointment The Trustee is hereby appointed and does hereby agree to

act in such capacity and to perform the express duties of the Trustee under this Indenture but

only upon and subject to the following express terms and conditions and no implied covenants

or other obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the Trustee

The Trustee may execute any of its trusts or powers and perform any of its

duties herein by or through attorneys agents receivers or employees and shall be entitled to rely

on advice of Counsel and other professionals concerning all matters of such trusts powers and

duties The Trustee shall not be answerable for the default or misconduct of any attorney agent

receiver or employee selected by it with reasonable care and may in all cases pay such Persons

reasonable compensation Th.e Trustee shall not be answerable for the exercise of any discretion

or power under this Indenrnre or for anything whatsoever in connection with its trusts powers

and duties herein except only for its gross negligence or willful misconduct

The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital herein or in the Notes

except with respect to the certificate of authentication of the Trustee endorsed on the Notes or

for the validity
of the execution by the Company of this Indenture or of any supplements thereto

or instruments of further assurance or for the sufficiency of the Collateral for the Notes Except

as otherwise provided in Section 8.03 hereof the Trustee shall not be liable for any loss suffered

in connection with any investment of funds made by it in accordance with Section 6.04 hereof

The Trustee shall have no duty or responsibility to examine or review and shall have no liability

for the contents of any documents submitted to or delivered to any Noteholder in the nature of

preliminary or final placement memorandum official statement offering circular or similar

disclosure document

The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Notes

authenticated or delivered hereunder after such Notes shall have been delivered in accordance

with instructions of the Company or for the use by the Company of the proceeds of the Notes

The Trustee may become the owner of Notes with the same rights as any other Noteholder

The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon opinions of counsel and

upon any notice request consent certificate order affidavit letter or other paper or document

believed to be genuine and correct and to have been signed or sent by an authorized

representative of such Person or Persons Any action taken by the Trustee pursuant to this

Indenture upon the request or authority or consent of any PersOn who at the time of making such
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request or giving such authority or consent is the owner of any Note such ownership to be

established as provided in Section 2.08 hereof shall be conclusive and binding upon all future

owners or holders of the same Note and upon Notes issued in exchange therefor or in place

thereof

The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in this

Tndenttire shall not be construed as duties The Trustee shall only be responsible for the

performance of the duties expressly set forth herein and shall not be answerable for other than its

gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of those express duties

The Trustee shall not be personally liable for any debts contracted or for

damages to Persons or to personal property injured or damaged or for salaries or non-fulfillment

of contracts relating to the Collateral

The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of

the execution of its trusts and powers or otherwise hereunder

Before taking any action requested hereunder the Trustee may require that

satisfactory security or indemnity be furnished to it for the reimbursement of all fees and

expenses to which it may be put and to protect it against all liability except liability which is

adjudicated to have resulted from its own gross negligence or willful misconduct by reason of

any action so taken

All moneys received by the Trustee until used or applied or invested as

herein provided shall be held as special trust funds for the purposes specified in this Indenture

and for the benefit and security of the holders of the Notes as herein provided Such moneys

need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law or herein provided

and the Trustee shall not otherwise be under any liability for interest on any moneys received

hereunder except such as may be agreed upon

The Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or inquire as to the

perfonnance of the obligations of the Company under this Indenture and shall not be deemed to

have or required to take notice of an Event of Default under this Indenture except in the

event the Company fails to pay any Company Repayment when due ii in the event of an

insufficient amount in the Note Fund or any account therein to make principal or interest

payment on the Notes or iii upon written notification actually received by the Trustee of

default or Event of Default from the Company the Company or the holders of not less than 25%

of the principal amount of Outstanding Notes In the absence of such notice the Trustee may

conclusively presume there is no Determination of Taxability and no Event of Default except as

aforesaid The Trustee may nevertheless require the Company to furnish information regarding

performance of their obligations under this Indenture but is not obligated to do so

The Trustee shall prior to any Event of Default and after the curing of all

Events of Default which may have occurred perform such duties and only such duties of the

Trustee as are specifically set forth in this Indenture The Trustee shall during the existence of

any Event of Default which has not been cured exercise such of the rights and powers vested
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in it by this Indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as prudent man

would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his OWfl affairs The foregoing

shall not limit the Trustees obligations under Section 8.03 hereof

In the event that the Trustee receives direction from Noteholders under

any section of this Indenture which permits Noteholders to direct the actions of the Trustee the

Trustee shall only be required to act pursuant to the direction of the Noteholders which represent

the largest percentage in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes at the time such

direction is issued to the Trustee the Majority Direction The Trustee may act pursuant to

other directions of Noteholders to the extent that such direction is not inconsistent with the

Majority Direction The Trustee shall not be liable for failure to act upon any direction except

the Majority Direction when acting pursuant to this Section 9.011 Nothing in this Section

9.011 shall be construed to modify or amend any section hereof which requires minimum

number of Noteholders to direct the Trustee to take certain action before the taking of such

action by the Trustee becomes mandatory

rn Notwithstanding the effective date of this Indenture or anything to the

contrary in this Indenture the Trustee shall have no liability or responsibility for any act or event

relating to this Indenture which occurs prior to the date the Trustee formally executes this

Indenture and commences acting as Trustee hereunder

The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon instructions or directions

pursuant to this indenture sent by unsecured e-mail facsimile transmission or other similar

unsecured electronic methods provided however that the Company subsequent to such

transmission of written instructions shall provide the originally executed instructions or

directions to the Trustee in timely manner such originally executed instructions or

directions shall be signed by person as may be designated and authorized to sign for the

Company or in the name of the Company by an authorized representative of the Company and

the Company shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing such designated

persons which incumbency certificate shall be amended whenever person is to be added or

deleted from the listing If the Company elects to give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile

instructions or instructions by similar electronic method and the Trustee in its discretion

elects to act upon such instructions the Trustees understanding of such instructions shall be

deemed controlling The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses costs or expenses arising

directly or indirectly from the Trustees reliance upon and compliance with such instructions

notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with subsequent written

instruction The Company agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic

methods to submit instructions and directions to the Trustee including without limitation the risk

of the Trustee acting on unauthorized instructions and the risk of interception
and misuse by

third parties

Section 9.02 Fees Expenses The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and/or

reimbursement for reasonable fees for its ordinary services rendered hereunder and all advances

counsel fees and other ordinary expenses reasonably made or incurred by the Trustee in

connection with such ordinary services If it becomes necessary that the Trustee perform

extraordinary services it shall be entitled to reasonable extra compensation therefor and to
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reimbursement for reasonable extraordinary expenses in connection therewith provided that if

such extraordinary services or extraordinary expenses are occasioned by the gross negligence or

willful misconduct of the Trustee it shall not be entitled to compensation or reimbursement

therefor

As security for the payment of the Trustees fees costs and expenses and for the

indemnity provided in this Section 9.02 the Trustee shall have first lien on all moneys and

property coming into its possession

When the Trustee incurs expenses or renders services after the occurrence of an act of

bankruptcy with respect to the Company the expenses arid the compensation for the services are

intended to constitute expenses of administration under any federal or state bankruptcy

insolvency arrangement moratorium reorganization or other debtor relief law

The Companys payment obligations under this Section shall survive the discharge of this

Indenture and the resignation or removal of the Trustee and shall not be limited by any law

affecting
the compensation of trustee of an express trust

Section 9.03 Intervention in Litigation In any judicial proceeding to which the

Company or the Company is party and which in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel

has substantial bearing on the interests of the holders of the Outstanding Notes the Trustee

may intervene on behalf of the Noteholders and shall do so if requested in writing by the holders

of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding and when provided

with sufficient indemnity pursuant to Section 9.0 1h hereof

Section 9.04 Resignation Appointment of Successor Trustee Successor Trustee

Upon Merger Consolidation or Sale

The Trustee and any successor Trustee may resign only upon giving 30

days prior written notice to the Company the Company and the Noteholders Such resignation

shall take effect only upon the appointment of successor Trustee as described in Section

9.04b below and the acceptance of such appointment by the successor Trustee Upon

appointment of successor Trustee the resigning Trustee shall after payment of its fees costs

and expenses assign all of its right title and interest in the Collateral and transfer and assign its

right title and interest in this Indenture to the successor Trustee The successor Trustee shall

meet the requirements of Section 9O4b below and shall accept in writing its duties and

responsibilities hereunder and file such acceptance with the Company

In case the Trustee shall give notice of resignation or be removed or be

dis solved or shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation or otherwise become incapable

of acting hereunder or in case it shall be taken under the control of any public office or offices

or of receiver appointed by court successor may with the prior written consent of the

Company be appointed by the owners of majority in aggregate principal amount of Notes then

Outstanding by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such owners or by

their duly authorized attorneys in fact copy of which shall be delivered personally or sent by

first class mail postage prepaid to the Company the retiring Trustee the successor Trustee and
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the Company In the absence of an appointment by the Noteholders the Company rnay with the

consent of the Company to the extent that no Event of Default shall have occurred and be

continuing appoint successor Trustee by an instrument in writing signed by an authorized

officer of the Company copy of which shall be delivered personally or sent by first class mail

postage prepaid to the retiring Trustee the successor Trustee and the Company If the

Noteholders and the Company fail to so appoint successor Trustee hereunder within
sixty 60

days afier the Trustee has given notice of its resignation has been removed has been dissolved

has otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder or has been taken under control by public

officer or receiver the Trustee shall have the right to petition court of competent jurisdiction to

appoint successor hereunder Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of this

Section 9.04 shall at all times be bank having trust powers or trust company ii at all

times be organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or of any

state iii have or be owned by an entity having combined capital and surplus of at least

$50000000 iv be authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust powers and be

subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority

Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be merged or

converted or with or into which it may be consolidated or to which it may sell or transfer its

corporate trust business and assets as whole or substantially as whole or any corporation or

association resulting from any merger conversion sale consolidation or transfer to which it is

party provided such company shall be eligible under Section 9.04b hereof shall be and

become successor Trustee hereunder and shall be vested with all the trusts powers rights

obligations duties remedies immunities and privileges hereunder as was its predecessor

without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act on the part of any of the

parties hereto

Section 9.05 Removal of Trustee The Trustee may be removed at any time by an

instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the Trustee the Company and

signed by the owners of majority in aggregate principal amount of Notes then Outstanding or

delivered to the Trustee and the Company and signed by the Company provided that if an

Event of Default has occurred and is continuing hereunder the Trustee may not be removed

without the consent of the holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then

Outstanding No removal of the Trustee and no appointment of successor Trustee shall become

effective until the successor Trustee has accepted its appointment in the manner provided in

Section 9.04 hereof Upon such removal and the payment of its fees costs and expenses the

Trustee shall assign to the successor Trustee all of its right title and interest in the Collateral in

the same manner as provided in Section 9.04 hereof

Section .06 Instruments of Notebolders Any instrument required by this Indenture

to be executed by Noteholders may be in any number of writings of similar tenor and may be

executed by Noteholders in person or by an agent appointed in writing Proof of the execution of

any such instrument or of the writing appointing any such agent shall be sufficient for any of the

purposes of this Indenture if it is established by certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction

who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing

such writing acknowledged before him the execution thereof Proof of the ownership of Notes

shall he established by the ownership records noted in the Note Register
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The Trustee may rely on such an instrument of Noteholders unless and until the Trustee

receives notice in the form specified above that the original such instrument is no longer

trustworthy In the event that the Trustee receives conflicting directions from two groups of

Noteholders each with combined holdings of not less than 25% of the
principal amount of

Outstanding Notes the directions given by the group of Noteholders which hold the largest

percentage of Notes shall be controlling and the Trustee shall follow such directions as required

in this Indenture

Section 9.07 Appointment of Separate or Co-Trustee It is the intent of the parties to

this Indenture that there shall be no violation of any law of any jurisdiction including

particularly the laws of the State of Michigan denying or restricting the rights of banking

corporations or associations to transact business as trustee in such jurisdiction It is recognized

that in case of litigation under this Indenture and in particular in the case of the enforcement of

this Indenture on default or in case the Trustee deems that by reason of any present or future law

of any jurisdiction it may not exercise any of the powers rights or remedies herein granted to the

Trustee or hold title to the properties in trust as herein granted or take any other action which

may be desirable or necessary in coimection therewith it may be necessary that the Trustee

appoint an additional individual or institution as separate trustee or co-trustee The following

provisions of this Section 9.07 are adapted to these ends

If the Trustee appoints an additional individual or institution as separate trustee or co

trustee each and every remedy power right claim demand cause of action immunity estate

duty obligation title interest and lien expressed or intended by this Indenture to be exercised

by vested in or conveyed to the Trustee with respect thereto shall be exercisable by vested in

and conveyed to such separate trustee or co-trustee but only to the extent necessary to enable

such separate trustee or co-trustee to exercise such powers rights and remedies and every

covenant and obligation necessary for the exercise thereby by such separate trustee or co-trustee

shall run to and be enforceable by either of them

Should any instrument in writing from the Company be required by the separate trustee

or co-trustee so appointed by the Trustee for more fully vesting in and confirming tO them such

properties rights powers trusts duties and obligations any and all such instruments in writing

shall on request be executed acknowledged and delivered by the Company If any separate

trustee or co-trustee or successor to either shall die become incapable of acting or not be

qualified to act resign or be removed all the estates properties rights powers trusts duties and

obligations of such separate trustee or co-trustee so far as permitted by law shall vest in and be

exercised by the Trustee until the appointment of successor to such separate trustee or co

trustee

ARTICLE

AMENDMENTS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

Sectinn 10.01 Supplemental Indenthres The Company and the Trustee without the

consent of or notice to any Noteholders may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental

to this Indenture and not inconsistent herewith for one or more of the following purposes
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To cure any ambiguity or to correct or supplement any provision

contained herein or in any supplemental indenture which may be defective or inconsistent with

any provision contained herein or in any supplemental indenture or to make such other

provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture which do not materially

adversely affect the interest of the Noteholders

To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Noteholders

any additional rights remedies powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to or conferred

upon the Noteholders or the Trustee

To grant or pledge to the Trustee for the benefit of the Noteholders any

additional security other than that granted or pledged under this Indenture

To modify amend or supplement this Indenture or any supplemental

indenture in such manner as to permit the qualification thereof under the Trust Indenture Act of

1939 or any similar federal statute then in effect or to permit the qualification of the Notes for

sale under the securities laws of any of the states of the United States

To appoint successor Trustee separate trustees or co-trustees in the

manner provided in Article IX

To make any other change which the Trustee and the Company determine

in reliance on an opinion of Counsel will not have material adverse effect on Noteholders or

To accomplish implement or give effect to any other action which is authorized or

required by this Indenture

When requested by the Company or the Company and upon receipt of an opinion of

Counsel to the effect that all conditions precedent under this Indenture have been met the

Trustee shall join the Company in the execution of any such supplemental indenture copy of

all such supplemental indentures shall be promptly furnished to the Company

Section 10.02 Amendments to Indenture Consent of Noteholders and the Company
Exclusive of supplemental indentures covered by Section 10.01 hereof and subject to the terms

and provisions contained un this Section 10.02 and not otherwise the Holders of not less than

majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding and affected by such

indenture or indentures supplemental hereto shall have the right from time to time anything

contained in this Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding to consent to and direct the execution

by the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures supplemental hereto as shall be consented to

by the Company which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld for the purpose of

modifying altering amending adding to or rescinding in any particular any of the terms or

provisions contained in this Indenture or in any supplemental indenture provided however that

nothing in this Article shall permit or be construed as permitting without the consent of the

holders of 66 2/3% of the principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding an extension of the

maturity of the principal of or the mandatory redemption date of or interest on any Note or ii

reduction in the principal amount of or the premium or the rate of interest on or redemption

TRUST l1DENTURE

Loudmouth Golf 2013 Secured Notes

46



provisions with respect to any Note iii preference or priority of any Note or Notes over any

other Note or Notes iv the creation of lien prior to the lien of this Indenture reduction

in the aggregate principal amount of the Notes required for consent to any supplemental

indenture or modification or change in the duties of the Trustee hereunder without the

consent of the Trustee The giving of notice to and consent of the Noteholders to any such

proposed supplemental indenture shall be obtained pursuant to Section 10.03

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding supplemental indenture amendment

or other document described under this Article which affects any rights or obligations of the

Company shall not become effective unless and until the Company consents to the execution of

such supplemental indenture amendment or other document

Section 10.03 Notice to and Consent of Noteholders If consent of the Noteholders is

required under the terms of this Indenture for the amendment of this Indenture or for any other

similarpurpose the Trustee shall cause notice of the proposed execution of the amendment or

supplemental indenture to be given by first class mall to the last known holders of the

Outstanding Notes then shown on the Note Register Such notice shall briefly set forth the

nature of the proposed amendment supplemental indenture or other action and shall state that

copies of any such amendment supplemental indenture or other document are on file at the

designated corporate trust office of the Trustee for inspection by all Noteholders If within 60

days or such longer period as shall be prescribed by the Trustee following the mailing of such

notice the holders of majority or all as the case may be of the principal amount of the Notes

Outstanding by instruments filed with the Trustee shall have consented to the amendment

supplemental indenture or other proposed action then the Trustee may execute such amendment

supplemental indenture or other document or take such proposed action and the consent of the

Noteholders shall thereby be conclusively presumed

ARTiCLE XI

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.01 Limitation of Rights With the exception of rights herein expressly

conferred nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be implied from this Indenture or the Notes

are intended or shall be construed to give to any Person other than the parties hereto the

Noteholders and the Company any legal or equitable right remedy Or claim under or in respect

to this Indenture or any covenants conditions and provisions herein contained this Indenture and

all of the covenants conditions and provisions herein being intended to be and being for the sole

and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto the Noteholders and the Company as herein provided

Section 11.02 Severability If any provision of this Indenture is held to be in conflict

with any applicable statute or rule of law or is otherwise held to be unenforceable for any reason

whatsoever such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question

inoperative or unenforceable in any other part or circumstance or of rendering any other

provision or provisions herein contained invalid inoperative or unenforceable to any extent

whatsoever
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The invalidity of any one or more phrases sentences clauses or Sections of this

Indenture contained shall not affect the remaining portions of this Indenture or any part
thereof

Section 11.03 Notices Except as otherwise provided herein all notices certificates or

other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given upon receipt by

hand delivery mail overnight delivery telecopy or other electronic means addressed as follows

If to the Company Loudmouth Golf LLC

1155 Chess Drive 102

Foster City CA 94404

Tel

Fax

If to the Trustee U.S Bank National Association

ATTN Corporate Trust

EP-MN-WS3C

60 Livingston Avenue

St Paul MN 55107

Tel 651 495-3917

Fax 651 495-8097

duplicate copy of each notice given hereunder by either party hereto shall be given to

the Trustee and the Company Any person or entity listed above may by notice given hereunder

designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices certificates or other

communications shall be sent For purposes of this Section electronic means shall mean

electronic mail telecopy or facsimile transmission or other similar electronic means of

communication which produces evidence of transmission

Section 11.04 Additional Notices to Rating Agencies The Trustee hereby agrees that

if at any time there is change in the Trustee there are any modifications supplements or

amendments to this Indenture or all of the Notes are paid in full then in each case the

Trustee shall promptly give notice of any such event to each Rating Agency then maintaining

rating on the Notes if any which notice in the case of an event described in clause above

shall include copy of any such amendment modification or supplement

Section 11.05 PaymentS Due on Non-Business Days In any case where the date of

maturity of interest on or premium if any or principal of the Notes or the date fixed for

redemption of any Notes shall not be Business Day then payment of such interest premium or

principal need not be made on such date but shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day

with the same force and effect as i.f made on the date of maturity or the date fixed for

redemptions and in the case of such payment no interest shall accrue for the period from and

after such date

Section 11.06 Interest Computation The interest on the Notes shall be computed on

the basis of 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months thereafter
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Section 11.07 Binding Effect This instrument shall inure to the benefit of and shall be

binding upon the Company and the Trustee and their respective successors and assigns subject

however to the limitations contained in this Indenture

Section 11.08 Captions The captions or headings in this Indenture are for convenience

only and in no way define limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of

this Indenture

Section 11.09 Governing Law This Indenture shall be governed by and interpreted in

accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan

Section 11.10 Execution in Counterparts This Indenture may be executed in several

counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the

same instrument

ARTICLE XII

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Section 12.01 Periodic Company Filings

The Trustee shall maintain file which may be in electronic form of the

information provided by the Company pursuant to Section 4.0 1a and

The Trustee shall maintain file of any written requests for copy of such

reports received by the Trustee from any Beneficial Owner of any Note which requests each

must contain the Beneficial Owners express representation and request to substantially this

effect

The undersigned represents to the Trustee the Company that the

undersigned currently owns 000 aggregate principal amount of Loudmouth Golf LLC
2013 Secured Notes which the undersigned purchased from __________________________

ii This is continuing request to the Trustee to provide to the

undersigned at the address set forth below or such other address as we hereafter in writing

provide the Trustee copy of each unaudited financial statement and financial statement filed

with the Trustee within the preceding 92 days and hereafier until the undersigned in writing

terminates this request or none of the Notes are any longer outstanding

Address of the undersigned

The Trustee shall honor each written request that it receives as described

in subsection above in accordance with its terms
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Nothing in this Section 12.01 imposes on the Trustee any duty express or

implied to investigate or verify the truth of any statement made by the Company in response to

any such written request or to examine any such report received from the Company or to

provide copy of any such report to anyone who has not made request therefor in the form

prescribed in subsection above

Section 12.02 Requests to the Company

The Trustee agrees that for as long as the if anyone who represents that it

is Beneficial Owner of Note by delivering to the Trustee signed statement substantially to

the effect of paragraph in Section 12.01b above Requesting Noteholder requests the

Trustee to request from the Company for and on behalf of such beneficial owner access to

infonnation and the opportunity to ask questions and receive answers concerning the legal status

financial condition and any other relevant matters which the Requesting Noteholder in its

discretion determines is necessary regarding the Company the Trustee accordingly will make

such request to the Company The Trustee further agrees to provide to such Requesting

Noteholder complete copy of whatever the Trustee receives from the Company in response to

such request

Nothing in this Section 12.02 imposes on the Trustee any duty express or

implied to investigate or verify the truth of any statement made by the Company in response to

any such written request or to examine anything received from the Company or to provide

copy of any such information or material to anyone other than Requesting Noteholder The

Trustee reserves the right to provide such information it receives from the Company or the

Authorizing Body pursuant to this Indenture to Requesting Noteholder via electronic mail or

media Requests for physical hard copies shall incur reasonable fee to be paid by the

Requesting Noteholder

of Page Intentionally Lefi Blank
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Company has executed this Indenture by its Chief

Executive Officer and the Trustee has caused this Indenture to be executed in its name by its

duly authorized officer all as of the day and year first above written

LOUFMOUTH GOLF LLC

By
Lariy Jackson

Its Chief Executive Officer

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as

Trustee

By

Its__________________________________________________
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EXHIBIT

FORM OF 2013 SECURED NOTE

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

Registered Owner Cede Co

Principal Amount $_____________

Rate Maturity Date Date of Issuance CUSIP

7% January 12019 ___________2013

FOR VALUE RECEIVED Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware limited liability company

the Company hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above or registered

assigns upon surrender hereof at the principal corporate trust or other designated office of the

Trustee named below on the Maturity Date specified above unless redeemed prior thereto the

Principal Amount specified above together with interest thereon at the iiterest rate specified

above from the authentication date hereof or such later date to which interest has been paid on

each January and July each an Interest Payment Date commencing January 2014 until

the principal hereof is paid or duly provided for upon redemption or maturity Payment of the

principal of redemption premium if any and interest on this Note shall be made in lawful

money of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for payment

of public and private debts Unless other arrangements are made pursuant to Section 2.02 of the

Indenture hereinafter defined interest is payable by check or draft of the Trustee mailed when

due to the registered Holder hereof at the close of business on the 15th day of the month

preceding any Interest Payment Date at the address of such Holder as it appears on the Note

registration
books of the Company maintained by the Trustee the Note Register

Interest on this Note shall be computed on the basis of 360-day year consisting of

twelve months of thirty days each

This Note is one of aa authorized series of Notes of the Company designated 2013

Secured Notes and issued in the aggregate principal amount of $5000000 the Notes

The Notes are issued pursuant to and in full compliance with Trust indenture the

Indenture dated as of _________ 2013 between the Company and U.S Bank National

Association as Trustee the Trustee Capitalized temis used herein and not otherwise defined

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture
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The Collateral includes security interest in the Collateral and in any other moneys held

by the Trustee under the Indenture The Debt Service on the Notes is unconditionally payable by

the Company

The Notes are issuable as fuiiy registered Notes in the denomination of $5000 or any

integral multiple of $5000 in excess thereof the Authorized Denominations This Note

upon surrender hereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee with written

instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee executed by the Noteholder hereof or his

attorney duly authorized in writing may at the option of the Noteholder hereof be exchanged

for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of any other Authorized Denomination This

Note is transferable as provided in the Indenture subject to certain limitations therein contained

and set forth in this Note only upon the Note Register and only upon surrender of this Note for

transfer to the Trustee duly endorsed by or accompanied by written instrument of transfer in

form satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the Noteholder hereof or his attorney duly

authorized in writing Thereupon one or more new Notes of Authorized Denominations and in

the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees

The Company has established book-entry only system of registration for the Notes

Except as specifically provided otherwise in the Indenture nominee of securities depository

will be the registered owner and will hold this Note on behalf of the beneficial owners hereof

By acceptance of confirmation of purchase delivery or transfer the beneficial owners of this

Note shall be deemed to have agreed to this arrangement The nominee as registered owner of

this Note shall be treated as the owner hereof for all purposes

REDEMPTION OF NOTES

The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity except as hereinafter provided

Optional Redemption

The Notes are subject to redemption at the option of the Company as directed in writing

by the Company in whole or in part at any time for one year beginning on the third anniversary

of the Issue Date at redemption price equal to 102% of the principal amount thereof plus

accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption The Notes are subject to redemption at the

option of the Company as dirçcted in writing by the Company in whole or in part at any time on

or after the fourth anniversary of the Issue Date at redemption price equal to 101% of the

principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption No Note may be

redeemed in part if the principal amount to be outstanding following such partial redemption is

not an Authorized Denomination

Partial Redemption

If less than all the outstanding Notes are called for redemption the Trustee shall select or

arrange for the selection of the Notes to be redeemed by lot in such manner as it shall in its

discretion determine provided that any such Note selected for redemption shall be in Authorized

Denominations and no Note may be redeemed in part if the principal amount to be outstanding
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following such partial redemption is not an Authorized Denomination If less than the principal

amount of Note is called for redemption the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall

authenticate and deliver upon surrender of such Note without charge to the Noteholder thereof

in exchange for the unredeemed principal amount of such Note at the option of such Noteholder

Notes in any of the Authorized Denominations

Notice of Redemption

Notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Trustee by first class mail at least 30 days

but not more than 45 days before any redemption date to the Noteholder of each Note to be

redeemed in whole or in
part at its last address appearing on the Note Register provided

however that failure to give such notice by mailing or any defect therein shall not affect the

validity of any proceedings for the redemption of any Note or portion thereof with respect to

which no such failure or defect has occurred In addition the Trustee may give such other notice

or notices as may be recommended in releases letters pronouncements or other writings of the

Securities and Exchange Commission Any notice mailed as provided above shall be

conclusively presumed to have been duly given whether or not the Noteholder receives the

notice All Notes so called for redemption will cease to bear interest on the specified date set for

redemption provided funds for their redemption have been duly deposited with the Trustee

pursuant to the Indenture and thereafter the Noteholders of such Notes called for redemption

shall have no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption price from

the Trustee and new Note for any portion not redeemed in any of the Authorized

Denominations

CERTAIN OTHER PROVISIONS

If provision is made for the payment of principal of premium if any and interest on this

Note in accordance with the Indenture this Note shall no longer be deemed outstanding under

the Indenture shall cease to be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture and shall thereafter be

payable solely from the funds provided for payment

Under certain circumstances as described in the Indenture the
principal of all the Notes

may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the indenture

Immediately following any such declaration the Trustee shall mail notice of such declaration by

first class mail to each Noteholder of Notes at his last address appearing on the Note Register

Any defect in or failure to give such notice of such declaration shall not affect the validity of

such declaration

The Indenture permits with certain exceptions as therein provided the amendment

thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations if any of the Company and the

Noteholders at any time with the consent of the Holders of majority in aggregate principal

amount of the Notes at the time outstanding which are affected by such modifications The

Indenture also pennits amendments and supplements to the Indenture without requiring the

consent of any Noteholders in certain specifically described instances The Indenture also

contains provisions permitting Holders of majority in aggregate principal amoun.t of the Notes

at the time outstanding on behalf of all the Noteholders to waive compliance by the Company
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with certain provisions of the Indenture and their consequences Any such consent or waiver by
the Noteholder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Noteholder and on all

future Noteholders of this Note and of any Note issued in lieu hereof whether or not notation of

such consent or waiver is made upon this Note Supplements and amendments to the Indenture

may be made only to the extent and in circumstances pennitted by the Indenture

The Noteholder of this Note shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Indenture

or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein or to take any action with respect to

default under the Indenture or to institute appear in or defend any suit or other proceedings with

respect thereto except as provided under certain limited circumstances described in the

Indenture provided however that nothing contained in the Indenture shall affect or impair any

right of the Noteholder to enforce the payment of the principal of and premium if any and

interest on this Note at and after the maturity thereof or ii the obligation of the Company to

pay the principal of and premium if any and interest on this Note to the Noteholder hereof at the

time place from the Source and in the manner as provided in the Indenture

The Noteholder of this Note by acceptance hereof consents to all of the terms and

provisions of the Indenture

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts conditions and

things required to exist happen and be performed precedent to the execution and delivery of the

Indenture and the issuance of this Note and the issue of which it is part do exist have

happened and have been timely performed in regular form and manner as required by law and

the issuance of this Note together with all other obligations of the Company does not exceed or

violate any constitutional or statutory limitation of the Company

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee by
manual signature of one of its authorized signers this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit

under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose

remainder of this page is left blank intentionally
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF Loudmouth Golf LLC has executed this Note by the manual

or facsimile signature of its Chief Executive Officer as of the Date of Original Issue set forth

above

LOUDMOUTH GOLF LLC

By
Larry Jackson

Its Chief Executive Officer

TRUSTEES CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Note is o.ne of the Notes described in the within-mentioned Indenture

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as

Trustee

By___________________________

its_________________________________________________________

Authentication Date September 2013

Unless this Note is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company
New York corporation DTC to the Company or its agent for registration of transfer

exchange or payment and any Note is registered in the name of Cede Co or in such other

name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC and any payment is made to Cede

Co or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC ANY
TRANSFER PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR
TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof Cede Co has

an interest herein

TRUST ThDENTURE
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OF ASSIGNMENT

For value received the undersigned hereby sells assigns and transfers unto

Name and Address of Assignee

Taxpayer LD No ________________________________

the within Note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

_______________________________________
the within Note and does hereby irrevocably

constitute and appoint _____________________________________ attorney to transfer such Note

on the books kept for registration and transfer of the within Note with full power of substitution

in the premises

Dated

NOTICE The signatures to this Assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon

the face of the Note in every particular without alteration or enlargement or any change

whatever

Signature Guaranteed_________________________

NOTICE Signatures must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution as defined by

SEC Rule l7Ad-15 17 CFR 240.l7Ad-15 participating in Securities Transfer Association

recognized signature guarantee program

TRUST INDENTURE

Loudmouth Golf 2013 Secured Notes

A-6



EXHIBIT

DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

MATURITY DATES January 2019

AMOUNT $5000000

INTEREST RATE 7%

TRUST INDENTURE
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EXHIBIT

LOCATION OF PLACE OF BUSINESS OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

1155 Chess Drive 102

Foster City CA 94404
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EXHIBIT

PRIOR LIENS AND DEBTS

Prior Liens None

TOutstandinOb1igdo t.s 15JLflO0 Line of Credit to QJ.d FktkLBmih
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EXHIBIT

ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION

Name

Jurisdiction of Formation

Employer Identification Number

Loudmouth Golf LLC

Delaware

20-8329479
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EXHIBIT

Form of Subscription Documents
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Procedure for the Purchase of Loudmouth Golf LLC

7% Fixed Rate Secured Note the Note

If you are interested in purchasing Note to be issued by Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware

limited liability company the Company you must

Complete the attached Subscription Agreement the Subscription Agreement

Provide check or wire transfer payable to US Bank National Association as indenture

trustee for Loudmouth Golf LLC and

Deliver the Subscription Agreement and payment if by check to our dealer-manager

Lake Forest Securities LLC

39 LaSalle Suite 716

Chicago Illinois 60603

If payment is by wire transfer transmit to US Bank National Association as follows

Wire Instructions
_____________________________________________

The minimum subscription is $5000 The Company may accept or reject any subscription you

tender in whole or in part This means that the Company may allocate to you Note in an amount

smaller than you subscribed to purchase

If the Company rejects your subscription in whole the Company will return this Subscription

Agreement and your payment If the Company accepts only part of your subscription the Company will

return the unused portion of your payment to you without interest if any

If the Company accepts your subscription in whole or in part copy of the Subscription

Agreement will be returned to you together with Note in fuiiy registered form that is payable to you in an

amount equal to the amount subscribed for or portion thereof accepted by the Company This will

confirm your subscription and indicate how much of your subscription the Company has accepted
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Subscription No

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Between Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware limited liability company the Company and

________________________________________ the Subscriber

Subscribed Amount $________________________

Dated ____________2013

WHEREAS the Subscriber has received and carefully reviewed the Companys Offering

Circular and other documents provided to Subscriber collectively the Disclosure Documents pursuant

to which the Company is offering to sell up to $5.0 million in principal amount of its 7% Fixed Rate

Secured Notes Maturing on January 2019 each Note and collectively the Notes and

WHEREAS the Subscriber hereby subscribes to acquire from the Company Note in the original

principal amount of the Subscribed Amount specified above and

WHEREAS the Subscriber and the Company are entering into this Subscription Agreement to

provide for such acquisition and issuance and to establish various rights and obligations in connection

therewith

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and the terms conditions and covenants

herein contained the parties hereby agree as follows

Subscription Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Subscription

Agreement and the Disclosure Documents the Subscriber hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase from

the Company Note in the Subscription Amount specified above check or wire transfer in full payment

of the Subscribed Amount must be delivered to the Companys dealer-manager Lake Forest Securities

LLC or to the indenture trustee US Bank National Association contemporaneously with the execution and

delivery of this Subscription Agreement

Representations and Warranties of Subscriber The Subscriber represents and warrants to

the Company that
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2.1 Disclosure Documents The Subscriber acknowledges that the Disclosure Documents

do not purport to be all-inclusive or to contain all of the infonnation which is relevant to this investment

decision the Company has prepared the Disclosure Documents using the best available information but

does not represent or wan-ant in any manner the accuracy or completeness of the information and most

of the information in the Disclosure Documents constitute forward-looking statements about the

Companys strategies objectives goals expectations results pians and projections that will likely differ

materially from actual results All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking

statements

2.2 Opportunity to Consult Advisers The Subscriber has had the opportunity and has

been encouraged by the Company to consult the Subscribers financial tax and legal advisers in

determining whether to invest in the Note

2.3 Exempt Sale The Subscriber acknowledges that the Note is being sold by

Company in reliance upon an exemption from registration provided by Section 3b of the Securities Act of

1933 as amended the Act and Regulation promulgated thereunder and further acknowledges that the

Note must be held indefinitely The Subscriber agrees that the Subscriber will not sell or otherwise transfer

the Note unless it is registered under the Act and qualified under applicable state securities or blue sky

laws or unless an exemption from such registration and qualification requirements is available

2.4 Legend Unregistered Securities It is understood that any certificates or other

documents evidencing the Note may bear legend substantially as follows

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED IJNTER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933 AS AMENDED IT MAY NOT BE SOLD OFFERED FOR SALE
PLEDGED OR HYPOTIIECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT OR AN OPINION OF

COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED THIS NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE

TERMS OF TIlE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT UNDER WHICH IT WAS
ISSUED

The Subscriber hereby agrees
that the Company shall be required to refuse to register any transfer of the

Note not made pursuant to registration under the Act or pursuant to an available exemption from

registration
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2.8 No Public Market for Companys Securities The Subscriber understands that there

is no public market for the Note The Subscriber understands and hereby acknowledges that the Company

is under no obligation to register the Note under the Act The Subscriber further acknowledges that the

Company may if it desires require as condition to the transfer of the Note that the Subscribers request

for transfer be accompanied by an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company that the

proposed transfer will not violate the Act or any applicable state blue sky laws

2.9 Right of Company to Reject Subscriptions The Subscriber understands that the

Company reserves the unrestricted right to reject or limit any subscription

2.10 No Representations by Agents or Employees of the Company The Subscriber

hereby represel1ts that except as set forth in the Disclosure Documents no representations or warranties

have been made to the Subscriber by the Company or any agent employee or affiliate of the Company and

in entering into this transaction the Subscriber is not relying on any information other than that contained

in the Disclosure Documents and the results of independent investigation by the Subscriber

2.11 Execution and Delivery of Subscription Agreement This Subscription

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Subscriber and constitutes the legal valid binding

and enforceable obligation of such Subscriber subject to applicable bankruptcy insolvency and similar

laws affecting creditors rights generally and subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity

2.12 Accuracy of information Provided by Subscriber The Subscriber hereby

represents
and wan-ants that the information furnished by the Subscriber in this Subscription Agreement is

true and correct

2.13 Survival of Representations and Warranties Each of the representations and

warranties in this Section shall survive the execution and delivery of this Subscription Agreement

2.14 Indemnification of the Company The Subscriber hereby agrees to hold the

Company and its directors officers representatives agents accountants attorneys successors and

assigns harmless and to indemnify them against all liabilities costs and expenses incurred by them as

result of any misrepresentation made by the Subscriber contained herein or any sale or distribution by the

undersigned Subscriber in violation of any applicable securities laws

Representations and Warranties of the Company The Company represents and

warrants to the Subscriber that

3.1 Status of Company The Company is limited liability company duly organized

existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and has the corporate power to

conduct the business which it conducts and proposes to conduct

3.2 Status of Note The Note has been duly and validly authorized and when issued

and paid for in accordance with the terms hereof will be valid and binding obligation of the Company

enforceable in accordance with its terms

3.3 Execution and Delivery of Subscription Agreement This Subscription Agreement

has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and constitutes the legal valid binding and

enforceable obligation of the Company subject to applicable bankruptcy insolvency and similar laws

affecting creditors rights generally and subject as to enforceability to general principles of equity
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3.4 No Conflict The execution delivery or performance of this Subscription

Agreement by the Company will not conflict with the Companys Articles of Organization or Operating

Agreement or result in any material breach of any terms or provisions of or constitute material default

under any contract agreement or instrument to which the Company is
party or by which the Company is

bound

3.5 Securities Exemption The offer sale and issuance of the Note are being made

pursuant to an exemption from registration provided by Section 3b of the Act and Regulation

promulgated thereunder

3.6 Effect of Breach The Subscription evidenced by this Subscription Agreement

shall be conditioned upon all of the foregoing representations and warranties being true and correct

3.7 Survival of Representations and Warranties Each of the representations and

warranties in this Section shall survive the execution and delivery of this Subscription Agreement

3.8 Indemnification of Subscriber The Company does hereby agree to indemnify and

hold harmless the Subscriber from and against any and all loss damage liability cost and expense

including reasonable attorneys fees arising out of or relating to breach by the Company of any of the

Companys representations or warranties herein contained

Miscellaneous Terms

4.1 Notices Except as otherwise provided in this Subscription Agreement any notice

required or permitted to be given pursuant to the provisions of this Subscription Agreement shall be

effective as of the day personally delivered or if sent by mail on the third day after deposit with the United

States Postal Service prepaid and addressed to the intended recipient at the address set forth below the

signature of such party to this Subscription Agreement or such other address specified in writing by such

party pursuant to written notice in accordance herewith or if sent by facsimile when confirmed

4.2 Integration This Subscription Agreement constitutes the entire agreement

between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of the transactions contemplated by this Subscription

Agreement This Subscription Agreement supersedes all written or oral prior and contemporaneous

agreements representations warranties and understandings of the parties with respect thereto

4.3 Applicable Law This Agreement and all actions arising out of or in connection

with this Subscription Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the

State of Delaware

4.4 Counterparts Facsimile Signatures This Subscription Agreement may be

executed in several counterparts and all counterparts so executed shall constitute one Subscription

Agreement binding on all parties hereto notwithstanding that all the parties are not signatories to the

original or the same counterpart Facsimile or PDF signatures shall be acceptable as if original signatures

had been exchanged

4.5 Severability If court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any

provision of this Subscription Agreement to be illegal unenforceable or invalid in whole or in part for any

reason such provision shall be adjusted rather than voided if possible to achieve the intent of the parties to

the extent possible and in any event the validity and enforceability of the remaining sections shall not be

affected unless an essential purpose of this Subscription Agreement would be defeated by the loss of the
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illegal unenforceable or invalid provision Without limiting the foregoing in the event that any provision

of this Subscription Agreement relating to time period and areas of restriction shall be declared by an

arbitrator or court of competentjurisdiction to exceed the maximum time period or areas such arbitrator or

court deems reasonable and enforceable the agreed upon time period and areas of restriction shall be

deemed to become and thereafter be the maximum time period and areas which said arbitrator or court

deems reasonable and enforceable

4.6 Amendment or Modification This Subscription Agreement may be amended or

modified from time to time only by written instrument executed by all parties hereto

4.7 Other Actions The parties agree to execute and deliver all such further documents

agreements and instruments and take such other and further action as may be necessary or appropriate to

cany out the purposes and intent of this Subscription Agreement

4.8 Taxpayer Identification Number/Backup Withholding Certification The

Subscriber hereby certifies that the taxpayer identification provided under the Subscribers signature is

correct and the Subscriber is not subject to backup withholding because he she or it has not been

notified that it is subject to backup withholding as result of failure to report interest and dividends or ii

the Internal Revenue Service has not notified the Subscriber that he she or it is subject to backup

withholding

Pages Follow
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Subscription Agreement as of the

____dayof _________2013

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF PROMISSORY NOTE $___________

Signature

Name Typed or Printed

Address

City State and Zip Code

Telephone

Facsimile

Signature if purchasing jointly

Name Typed or Printed

Address

City State and Zip Code

Telephone

Facsimile

Tax ID or Social Security

Name in which Note should be issued

Tax ID or Social Security

This Subscription Agreement is agreed to and accepted as of

with respect to Note in the amount of $_________________________

Loudmouth Golf LLC

By
Name

Title

INDiVIDUAL INVESTOR SIGNATURE PAGE

20
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iN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Subscription Agreement as of the

____dayof 2013

PRiNCIPAL AMOUNT OF PROMISSORY NOTE

Name of Entity/Institution
Number of Members/Partners

If Applicable

Address Number of Shareholders

City State and Zip Code State of Formation

Telephone

Facsimile

Signature

Name Typed or Printed and Title/Position of

Individual Signing on Behalf of Entity/Institution

Date of Formation

Tax ID or Social Security of

Institution

Facsimile Business

Name in which Note should be issued

Dated 20

This Subscription Agreement is agreed to and accepted as of_

with respect to Note in the amount of $________________________

Loudmouth Golf LLC

By
Name

Title

CORPORATE ENTITY/INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR SIGNATURE PAGE

20
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Opinion of Clark Hill Thorp Reed

Loudmouth Golf LLC

1155 Chess Drive 102
Foster City California 94404

Re Loudmouth Golf LLC

Offering Statement on Form 1-A

Ladies and Gentlemen

We are acting as counsel to Loudmouth Golf LLC Delaware limited liability company the

Company in connection with the preparation and filing with the Securities and Exchange

Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Act of the Companys Offering

Statement on Form 1-A the Offering Statement The offering Statement covers up to $5000000 in

principal amount of secured fixed-rate notes the Notes to be sold as set forth in the Offering

Statement and the offering circular contained therein

In rendering the opinion expressed below we have examined originals or copies of the

Offering Statement in the form filed with the Commission the subscription agreements and the

form of Note We have also examined such other instruments corporate records certificates of public

officials certificates of officers or other representatives of the Company and other documents as we have

deemed necessary or appropriate as basis for the opinion set forth herein

We have assumed the following the genuineness of all signatures the authenticity of all

documents submitted to us as originals the conformity to authentic original documents of all

documents submitted to us as copies the truth accuracy and completeness of the information factual

matters representations and warranties contained in the records documents instruments and certificates

we have reviewed as of their stated dates and as of the date hereof the legal capacity of natural

persons and the absence of any evidence extrinsic to the provisions of the written agreements between

the parties that the parties intended meaning contrary to that expressed by those provisions As to any

facts material to the opinion expressed herein that were not independently established or verified we have

relied upon oral or written statements and representations of officers and other
representatives of the

Company and others

Based upon the foregoing and having regarding for such legal considerations as we deem

relevant we are of the following opinion

When issued and sold by the Company against payment therefor pursuant to the terms of the

subscription agreements executed by the investors in the Notes the Notes will be binding obligations of

the Company

This opinion is subject to applicable bankruptcy insolvency reorganization fraudulent transfer

moratorium or other similar laws of general applicability affecting or limiting the rights of creditors and

general principles of equity including without limitation concepts of materiality reasonableness good

faith and fair dealing and other similar doctrines affecting the enforceability of agreements generally

regardless of whether considered in proceeding in equity or at law
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We are admitted to practice in the State of Michigan and we express no opinion as to matters

governed by any laws other than the laws of the State of Michigan and the Federal laws of the United

States of America

This opinion has been prepared for your use in connection with the Offering Statement and

speaks as of the date hereof We assume no obligation to advise you of any changes in the foregoing

subsequent to the delivery of this opinion

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as Exhibit 11 to the Offering Statement and to

the reference of our firm under Part of the Offering Statement In giving such consent we do not

thereby admit that we are included in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section

of the Act or the rules and regulations of the Commission

Very truly yours

CLARK HILL THORP REED
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